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Proﬁle

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) was established in 1962 and began operations in
1963 with the transfer of the business assets of the Chemical Products Division of Hitachi,
Ltd. Since then, based on the extensive technology platform it has accumulated over many
years, the Company has continuously worked to expand its ﬁeld of businesses, developing
innovative technologies and new markets.
As a “Technologically Innovative Corporation” that provides optimal solutions to its
customers, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“Hitachi Chemical”
or “the Group”) are combining and harmonizing the superior technologies they have accumulated over the years in order to maximize the value of the Group and contribute to a more
prosperous society while maintaining a strong commitment to protecting the environment.
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This Annual Report may contain certain statements that Hitachi Chemical believes are,
or may be considered to be, “forward-looking statements.” These forward-looking statements generally include phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,”
“foresee,” or other similar words or phrases. Similarly, statements that describe our
objectives, plans, or goals are also forward-looking statements. All of these forwardlooking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause our
actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forwardlooking statements. Please see “Business and Other Risks” in Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Operations and Finances.

Financial Highlights
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Thousands of U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2011

2010

2009

2011/2010
% change

2011

For the year:
Net sales

¥497,452

¥455,287

¥488,638

$5,993,398

9.3%

Operating income

43,471

38,341

19,938

523,747

13.4

Net income

18,943

23,509

2,740

228,229

(19.4)

Capital expenditures

30,432

20,984

35,972

366,651

45.0

Research and development expenses

26,382

25,402

27,617

317,855

3.9

¥432,184

¥426,586

¥391,350

$5,207,036

290,311

282,602

263,588

3,497,723

90.96

¥ 112.88

13.15

$ 1.10

—

—

13.15

—

—

At year-end:
Total assets
Total net assets

1.3%
2.7

Per share data:
Net income (basic)

¥

Net income (diluted)
Cash dividends

¥

(19.4)%

36.00

32.00

32.00

0.43

12.5

1,320.30

1,289.11

1,203.92

15.91

2.4

Return on sales (%)

3.8

5.2

0.6

Return on equity (ROE) (%)

7.0

9.1

1.1

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

4.4

5.7

0.6

Debt/Equity ratio (DER) (times)

0.1

0.1

0.1

Net assets

Value indicators:

Note: U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥83=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange
Market as of March 31, 2011.

Net Sales

Operating Income /
Percentage of Net Sales

Net Income

Return on Equity (ROE) /
Return on Assets (ROA)

Cash Dividends per Share

Billions of yen
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* The Housing Equipment and Environmental Facilities segment was removed from the scope of consolidation in October 2007 due to the sale of its shares. For this reason, the earnings of the segment have not been
included in the Company’s consolidated ﬁnancial results from October 1, 2007.
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To Our Shareholders
We will continue to advance growth strategies

First of all, I would like to thank all of our stakeholders, from our

—expanding global operations as well as creating

shareholders and other investors to customers, suppliers, and mem-

new products and developing new businesses—

bers of the community, for their continued support and understanding

and to target improved corporate value

of the Hitachi Chemical Group. I would also like to express my deepest
condolences to those people who have suffered as a result of the
Great East Japan Earthquake. I am praying for the quick recovery of
the affected regions.
The Hitachi Chemical Group is currently advancing growth strategies based on the two pillars of expanding global operations as well as
creating new products and developing new businesses in accordance
with its medium-term management plan for the three-year period that
began in April 2010. Although the Great East Japan Earthquake
occurred in March 2011, at the end of fiscal 2010, we were able to
achieve gains in both net sales and operating income as a result of
initiatives that we implemented throughout the year. These initiatives
included working to create new products and develop new businesses
while focusing management resources on growth fields, as well as
taking steps to strengthen overseas operations. Going forward, we will
continue to advance these growth strategies and target improved corporate value. I would like to ask for the continued support of our
stakeholders as we pursue these endeavors.

Kazuyuki Tanaka
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Interview with the President

Driven Determination
Performance in Fiscal 2010

Q

In the fiscal year under review, Hitachi Chemical succeeded in achieving
increased net sales and operating income. What do you believe are the factors
behind this impressive performance?
Steady implementation of initiatives geared toward expand-

As part of our efforts to create new products and develop

ing global operations as well as creating new products and

new businesses, we bolstered efforts to create new products for

developing new businesses

growth fields such as touch panels, energy (solar cells, wind

In the fiscal year under review, we strove to expand our operations

power, etc.), and LED. These efforts were spearheaded by the

through growth strategies based on the two pillars of expanding

New Business Development Headquarters, which I head myself

global operations as well as creating new products and developing

and actively participate in. Specifically, we worked to expand sales

new businesses. As a result of these efforts, consolidated net

of the optically clear adhesive film “FINESET” as a supporting

sales rose 9.3% year on year, to ¥497.5 billion, and consolidated

material for the touch panels used in smartphones and tablet

operating income rose 13.4%, to ¥43.5 billion. While we were

PCs. Going forward, we will continue to address the demand for

forced to suspend operations at a number of our production

this product with the hopes of achieving even higher sales.

bases due to the Great East Japan Earthquake, which occurred

Additionally, we began acquiring orders for our carbon anode

on March 11, 2011, we were able to achieve increased net sales

materials for lithium ion batteries, which hold the top share of

and operating income. Regardless, net income fell below last

the global market, to be used in environmentally-friendly auto-

year’s level due to the recording of large losses of ¥10.3 billion

mobiles. In April 2010, we began full-fledge operation of a pro-

caused by the disaster.

duction line for this purpose. Further, we constructed a second

In regard to our efforts to expand global operations, we

production line to respond to increased demand from custom-

primarily focused on strengthening and expanding overseas oper-

ers. This production line was completed in December 2010. In

ations in the automobiles field. In consideration of the increased

doing so, we will continue to create new products and develop

demand for automobiles in emerging countries, we took several

new businesses by selectively allocating management resources

steps to enhance our production bases in such countries. These

to growth markets, while remaining responsive to sudden

steps included the establishment of a new production company

changes in the operating environment. Through these efforts,

for automotive-use lead acid batteries in Thailand and a new pow-

we will further solidify our position in the market.

der metal products production company in Indonesia. Further,
Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A. de C.V. began mass producing
disk brake pads and began shipping these in June 2010.

Financial Results
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Operating Environment: Effects of the Earthquake and Our Response

Q

Hitachi Chemical was forced to suspend operations at certain operating bases as
a result of the Great East Japan Earthquake, and was affected in other ways as well.
How are you working to address such issues?
Supplementation of production systems through utilization

part way through the process of becoming carbon brushes, is

of internal and external resources in order to fulfill

produced at Hitachi Chemical’s Yamazaki Works (Sakuragawa)

the responsibility of supplying products to customers

in the Hitachi area. We were able to resume production of

The damage sustained by the facilities at production bases

these blocks in early April, and are delivering carbon brushes

in the Western and the Kashima areas of Ibaraki Prefecture

to customers after outsourcers perform the final processing. In

as well as in Chiba Prefecture was minimal, and we were able

regard to the disk brake pads produced by Namie Japan

to resume operations relatively quickly. While the operating

Brake, we are working to cover for the loss in production

plants in the Hitachi area of Ibaraki Prefecture, which was

capacity by upping production at the two domestic and three

relatively close to the epicenter, sustained somewhat serious

overseas production bases that also produce these brake

damage to its facilities, they were able to resume operations in

pads. In those cases in which we are unable to fully meet

the later part of March. However, Namie Hitachi Chemical Co.,

demand from within the Group, we are outsourcing production

Ltd. and Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd., both located in Namie-

to other companies in the same industry. However, we are

machi in Fukushima Prefecture, are within the government-

working to quickly develop systems to allow Namie Japan

mandated evacuation zone that was established following the

Brake to supply the products without outside assistance. To

accident at the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station.

this end, we have decided to install disk brake pads produc-

Therefore, we are currently unable to enter the premises and

tion facilities within the grounds of Hitachi Chemical’s Shi-

were forced to cease operations at these sites. I also regret to

modate Works located in the Western area of Ibaraki Prefecture.

inform you that three employees of Namie Japan Brake as well

These facilities are scheduled to begin production in December

as members of their families lost their lives as a result of the

2012. In order to fulfill the responsibility of supplying products

earthquake, while some employees at other Group companies

to customers, we are constructing new supply systems with

also lost members of their family. I would like to pray for the

the aim of guaranteeing our ability to securely supply products.

souls of the deceased.
We have been developing measures to resume production of the two products that were produced in the Namie area
in order to reestablish supply to customers as quickly as
possible. We have thus decided to outsource the production of
the carbon brushes made by Namie Hitachi Chemical to manufacturers belonging to the Japan Carbon Association as well
as other manufacturers. Carbon blocks, which is a material

Effects of the Great East Japan Earthquake (as of the end of April 2011)
Site
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Products

Status

Hitachi Area of Ibaraki
Prefecture / Yamazaki Works

Die Bonding Materials, CMP Slurry, Varnishes,
Ceramics, Carbon Anode Materials for Lithium Ion
Batteries, Photosensitive Dry Films

Despite the damage to the facilities, production had resumed
by the end of March. Currently operation is almost back to normal.

Western Area of Ibaraki Prefecture
/ Shimodate Works, Hitachi
Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd.

Epoxy Molding Compounds, Anisotropic Conductive
Films, Adhesive Films, Copper-Clad Laminates,
Printed Wiring Boards, Interior and Exterior Plastic
Molded Products for Automobiles

With no great damage to the facilities, production had resumed
by the end of March. Currently operation is back to normal.
* Situation of interior and exterior plastic molded products depends
on the operations of automotive manufacturers.

Chiba Prefecture, Kashima Area
of Ibaraki Prefecture / Goi Works,
Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.

Die Bonding Materials, Synthetic Resins for Paints,
Powder Metal Products

With no great damage to the facilities, production had resumed
by the end of March. Currently operation is back to normal.

Namie Area of
Fukushima Prefecture

Carbon Brushes (Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.),
Disk Brake Pads (Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd.)

Designated as an evacuation zone due to the nuclear accidents at the
Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station and thus not accessible.

Fiscal 2011: Challenges and Key Strategies

Q

Hitachi Chemical has defined putting growth strategies into action as challenges to be
surmounted in fiscal 2011. First, would you please explain some of the initiatives you
plan to implement in regard to this?
Implementation of measures to secure supply systems

with multiple suppliers and implementing other measures to

and improve competitiveness

expand the scope of our material procurement activities and

There are currently three issues that need to be addressed.

replacing specialty materials used in products with more

These are related to the two constraints of electricity shortages

standard materials.

and material procurement difficulties, as well as the challenge

In order to address the overconcentration of production

of developing stable production systems. The measures that we

bases, we are optimizing our network of domestic and overseas

will implement in response to these issues are explained below.

production bases and considering measures to alleviate the

We plan to address electricity shortages by fully leveraging

overconcentration of our production systems through decen-

in-house generators and other supplementary generators.

tralization. In these ways, we hope to guarantee the ability to

Also, we are working to cut electricity usage by changing the

stably supply its products. However, the goal of our decentral-

work schedules at our production bases. Through these efforts,

ization efforts is not only to stabilize supply systems. We also

we have managed to meet the government-mandated goal of

believe it is important to conduct this decentralization in a

reducing electricity usage by 15%. However, we are currently

manner that improves the Group’s competitiveness. For

considering constructing production systems in line with even

example, previously the production bases for carbon anode

more extreme in-house reduction targets. In order to cover for

materials for lithium ion batteries were located only within

the electricity usage of production facilities making products

Japan. Recently, however, we decided to establish a new pro-

that require continuous operation, we are halting production at

duction base for these materials in China. This decision was

facilities that can be stopped with no impact to products under

based on the recent trend toward customers shifting their pro-

production. Additionally, we are shifting work days during this

duction bases to China as well as the fact that this would put

period at our head office and other offices over the summer

our production facilities closer to the source of raw materials,

months in which electricity usage is particularly high. Through

thereby contributing to improved cost competitiveness. Addi-

these efforts, we aim to keep electricity consumption relatively

tionally, in regard to the above-mentioned disk brake pads, we

standard on a daily basis.

are reinforcing our production systems in Mexico and India.

In response to material procurement difficulties, we have

Through these efforts, we hope to cover for the loss of produc-

stockpiled the necessary volume of material reserves by tem-

tion capacity associated with the business located in the Namie

porarily securing the reserves held by suppliers and using

area, as we deem that operations there will not resume in the

other suppliers, as well as by conducting emergency procure-

immediate future, while also strengthening our ability to

ment of imports. However, we realize the necessity of securing

respond to demand from emerging countries.

a stable supply in the long term. Therefore, we are contracting

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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Q

In regard to putting growth strategies into action, Hitachi Chemical has defined the two
growth strategies of aiming to create new products and develop new businesses as well as
accelerate global expansion. What are some of the key points of these strategies?
Focus on fields with anticipated future growth

operations throughout the day. We will promote the usage of

and high demand

this system as a solution for electricity shortages.

In creating new products and developing new businesses, we

Further, as another initiative geared toward creating new

will develop new products that focus on fields in which future

products and developing new businesses, we invested in the

growth is anticipated, such as the fields of touch panels, LEDs,

research facilities within the Shimodate Works, and decided to

and energy.

construct new R&D and testing facilities. Going forward, we will

The touch panel market is rapidly expanding in tandem
with the increased demand for tablet PCs and smartphones.

6

continue to strengthen R&D functions within Japan in order to
contribute to the future creation of new products.

Sales of the optically clear adhesive film “FINESET” as a sup-

As one facet of our efforts to accelerate global expansion,

porting material for touch panels are growing significantly.

we are progressively developing global production systems for

Accordingly, we are actively working to expand sales of this

automotive parts in order to respond to the robust demand for

product to meet our goal of achieving sales of ¥12.0 billion in

automobiles in emerging countries. Specifically, we have

fiscal 2012.

decided to conduct investment to double the disk brake pads

In the LED market, we anticipate demand for products

production capacity of Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

used in televisions and light bulbs to increase in the future. The

by August 2012. However, we are not only working to secure

main technological challenge in this field is increasing the

global supply systems in response to the earthquake. Following

lifespan of LEDs. In order to achieve this, it is often necessary

this doubling of production capacity, we will continue to invest

to utilize specialty materials for purposes such as boosting the

in enhancements in order to address forecast future demand.

efficiency of heat release and preventing the degradation of

Through these investments, we aim to raise our total global

reflectivity due to discoloration. We are developing materials

production capacity to 1.5 times its current level in fiscal 2015.

possessing these properties, such as thermal-conductive

Further, we are constructing new production bases in China,

materials and highly reflective materials. We are currently

Thailand, and Indonesia, while also bolstering the production

actively providing samples of such materials.

capacity of existing bases in these areas. Additionally, we

The energy field is a field in which several markets are

established a joint-venture manufacturing company in India

anticipated to show strong future growth. One of these is the

(please refer to the special feature on page 8 and 9 for details).

market for solar cells. Currently, crystalline silicon solar cells

Also, in China, where expansion of industries related to semi-

are becoming increasingly main stream and the silicon wafers

conductors and printed wiring boards (PWBs) is expected, we

used in these cells are becoming ever thinner as a means of

have decided to boost the production capacity of epoxy

reducing costs. At present, it is common to connect the elec-

molding compounds for semiconductors and photosensitive

trodes of a cell to its tab ribbons using solder. However, using

dry films for PWBs. Moreover, in pursuit of increased sales of

solder requires high temperatures, which can place stress on

copper-clad laminates for PWBs, we acquired additional

the cell and possibly result in the warping or cracking of thinner

shares of the stock in a manufacturing company in China to

cells. To address this issue, the Company has developed con-

which we had outsourced operations, thereby making it into a

ductive films capable of being applied at low temperatures as

consolidated subsidiary. As a medium- to long-term measure

well as other adhesive materials to serve as replacements for

geared toward global expansion, we are working to develop

solder. It is currently promoting sales of such materials.

production systems that are rooted in the regions in which we

Further, we have great expectations for the power storage

operate. I believe this will help further differentiate our opera-

system “Sefla,” produced by Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery

tions from those of competitors. However, we are not only

Co., Ltd. This system enables electricity to be stored in batter-

shifting production operations overseas, but are also installing

ies at night, when there is a surplus of available electricity, so

R&D functions into such regions. This will strengthen our

that it may be used during the daytime, when electricity

ability to develop products and offer technical services that are

demand is greater. This helps companies secure daytime

responsive to the local needs inherent in these regions, thus

electricity supplies, allowing them to continue their business

serving to boost sales from local companies.

Forecast for Fiscal 2011

Q

What are your forecasts for fiscal 2011?
Turn fiscal 2011 into a year to achieve the goals defined

billion, and net income of ¥23.0 billion. Going forward, we will

in the medium-term management plan

be faced by a harsh operating environment. Regardless, we

Following the Great East Japan Earthquake, the supply chain

will continue to leverage the Group’s diverse technologies and

for automotive products was disrupted and automobile pro-

product lineups, which are its key strengths, to create new

duction declined. However, we are expecting recovery in these

products and develop new businesses, as well as to take

areas during the second half of fiscal 2011, the year ending

advantage of the demand in emerging countries. Through

March 31, 2012. While the plant utilization rates of automobile

these efforts, we aim to turn fiscal 2011 into a year to achieve

manufacturers were particularly low at the beginning of fiscal

the goals defined in the medium-term management plan.

2011, affecting the performance of automobile-related
products, these rates are presently showing rapid recovery.
The accelerated recovery for the second half of the fiscal year
will be dependent on supply chain trends. Therefore, we must
closely monitor such trends. In the electronics market, the
strong growth in demand for LCD televisions seen in the fiscal
year under review has begun to decelerate. Accordingly, it is
unclear when the sales of display and semiconductor-related
products will see a full recovery. In fiscal 2011, taking these
factors into account, as well as the effects of soaring material
prices and the persistence of the strong yen, we are forecasting net sales of ¥510.0 billion, operating income of ¥40.0

Shareholder Returns

Q

What are the Company’s policies regarding shareholder returns?
Take a long-term view and work to provide stable

high-value-added products and the invigoration of existing

shareholder returns

businesses. In this way, we will utilize such effective invest-

The Company’s basic policy is to fully consider a wide range of

ments to increase income. On that basis, we will take a long-

factors when allocating earnings to cash reserves and divi-

term view toward dividends and, as a result, work to issue

dends. This process includes a comprehensive assessment

stable dividends to shareholders.

of our operating environment, overall performance, future
business projects, and our targets for payout ratio. Based on
these policies, the Company increased cash dividends per
share of common stock ¥4, to ¥36, for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2011. As for fiscal 2011, the year ending March 31,
2012, the Company intends to issue cash dividends of ¥36 per
share, the same level as fiscal 2010.

Cash Dividends per Share
Yen
40
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Going forward, we will strive to maintain our standing as a
20

company that continues to provide superior technologies and
products that are state-of-the art. To this end, we will continue
to invest in the future growth of the Group. These investments
will focus on areas including R&D programs to develop new
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Special Feature

ACCELERATE GLOBAL EXPANSION
Developing Global Production Systems, Responding to Demand from Emerging Countries
Hitachi Chemical is accelerating its global expansion efforts in order to more actively
address the strong demand in emerging countries, such as China and India, in which
the continuation of rapid economic growth is anticipated. Through these efforts, the
Company hopes to further expand its business operations.
In the automobiles field, we have decided to construct new automotive products
production bases in China, Indonesia, Thailand, and Mexico as well as bolster the
production capacity of existing bases. In India, we have established a joint-venture
friction material manufacturing company and are considering the full-fledged operation of a powder metal products business. These initiatives will help the Group
expand its automotive products business by addressing the demand from growing
automobile markets in emerging countries.
In the electronics field, we aim to steadily address the demand for products for
which strong growth in emerging countries is expected, such as photosensitive dry
films for PWBs and carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries, and enhance the
Group’s competitive edge. To this end, we have decided to boost the production
capacity in China and other regions in Asia.
In this special feature, we will provide an overview of the progression of the Company’s global expansion initiatives.
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Billions of yen
400

%
50.0
50.0
42.9

38.2

40.0

43.4

300

37.5
239.3
216.1
195.5

200

195.4

25.0

100

12.5

0.0

0

08

09

10

11

12*

Years ended March 31

Overseas sales
Overseas sales ratio (right scale)
* Target of medium-term management plan

Mexico
Friction Materials (Disk Brake Pads)
1. Double production capacity
2. August 2012

Country
Products
In this section, products in blue are Functional Materials segment,
and products in green are Advanced Components and Systems segment
Functional Materials Segment
Advanced Components and Systems Segment
1. Initiative
2. Start date (planned)

8

China
Carbon Anode Materials for Lithium Ion Batteries

Photosensitive Dry Films

1. Construct new manufacturing base
2. March 2012

1. Double production capacity
2. April 2011

Advanced Performance Resins and Chemical Materials

Copper-Clad Laminates

1. Construct new manufacturing base
2. January 2013

1. Make joint-venture into a consolidated subsidiary
2. End of September 2011

Automotive Plastic Molded Products

Epoxy Molding Compounds

1. Construct new manufacturing base
2. January 2014

1. Increase production capacity by 40%
2. January 2012

Photosensitive Dry Films

Epoxy Molding Compounds

Thailand
Automotive Lead Batteries
(Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.)
1. Construct new manufacturing base
2. April 2012

Malaysia
Epoxy Molding Compounds
1. Increase production capacity by 40%
2. May 2012

India
Friction Materials
1. Establish joint-venture
manufacturing company
2. December 2012

Indonesia
Powder Metal Products
1. Construct new
manufacturing base
2. April 2012

Powder Metal Products
1. Conduct FS
(feasibility studies)
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Segment Information

For the following reasons, the Company has changed its reportable segments. On April 1, 2010, the Accounting
Standard for Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information was applied, and accordingly,
the Company was obligated to disclose the segments that reflect its actual activities. In addition, due to changes
in markets and the demands of customers, the application of the Group’s products has been progressively diversifying. As a result, the previous segments no longer reflected the Company’s approach to management accurately.
Accordingly, the Company has categorized materials as the “Functional Materials Segment”
and the components and parts as the “Advanced Components and Systems Segment.”

Previous Segments

ELECTRONICS RELATED
PRODUCTS

ADVANCED PERFORMANCE
PRODUCTS

SUB-SEGMENTS

SUB-SEGMENTS

Semiconductor and Display Related Materials
Printed Wiring Boards and Related Products
Others

Industrial Materials
Carbon and Ceramics
Automotive Parts
Advanced Functional Films
Others

Current Segments

FUNCTIONAL MATERIALS

ADVANCED COMPONENTS
AND SYSTEMS

SUB-SEGMENTS AND PRODUCTS

SUB-SEGMENTS AND PRODUCTS

Electronics Materials

Automotive Products

Epoxy Molding Compounds for Semiconductors
Die Bonding Materials for Semiconductors
Slurry for Chemical Mechanical Planarization
Varnishes

Interior and Exterior Plastic Molded Products
Friction Materials
Powder Metal Products

Inorganic Materials

Printed Wiring Boards

Carbon Anode Materials for Lithium Ion Batteries
Carbon Products
Ceramics

Polymer Science Materials
Synthetic Resins for Paints
Adhesive Films
Anisotropic Conductive Films for Displays
Adhesives
Contactless IC Cards and Tags

Printed Wiring Board Materials
Copper-Clad Laminates for Printed Wiring Boards
Photosensitive Dry Films for Printed Wiring Boards
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Electronics Components
Others
Batteries
Capacitors
Diagnostics / Instruments

Review of Operations

FUNCTIONAL MATERIALS SEGMENT

Slurry for Chemical Mechanical Planarization

Anisotropic Conductive Films for Displays

Percentage of Net Sales

Operating Results

%

Billions of yen

Carbon Anode Materials
for Lithium Ion Batteries

2010*

Years ended March 31

50.7

Net Sales

2011

240.7

252.0

Operating Income

32.2

31.1

Operating Income Margin

13.4%

12.3%

* Data for the year ended March 31, 2010, has been recalculated in accordance with the new segments.

In the Functional Materials Segment, sales increased 4.7% year on year, to ¥252.0 billion, due primarily to increasing sales of slurry for
chemical mechanical planarization and epoxy molding compounds reflecting the growth in demand for semiconductors, and to increasing sales of carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries associated with the growing demand for use in environmentally-friendly
automobiles. Operating income fell 3.4%, to ¥31.1 billion, principally as a result of the appreciation of the yen and sluggish demand for
LCD materials in the second half of the fiscal year.

Electronics Materials

Polymer Science Materials

Sales of epoxy molding compounds for semiconductors increased

Sales of synthetic resins for paints grew compared with the previ-

compared with the previous fiscal year due to growth in demand

ous fiscal year for use in building materials, etc.

for digital home appliances, etc., in China.
Sales of die bonding materials for semiconductors declined
compared with the previous fiscal year due to intensifying competition, etc.
Sales of slurry for chemical mechanical planarization increased
compared with the previous fiscal year on the back of a recovery
in demand.
Sales of varnishes increased compared with the previous fiscal
year reflecting the increasing use for surface protection of LCD

Sales of adhesive films decreased compared with the previous
fiscal year reflecting a decline in the demand for surface protection of optical sheets used in LCDs.
Sales of anisotropic conductive films for displays decreased
compared with the previous fiscal year reflecting the decreasing
demand for LCD TVs in China, etc.
Sales of contactless IC cards and tags increased compared
with the previous fiscal year due to their expanded use in the field
of public services.

circuits and in hybrid automobile motors.

Printed Wiring Board Materials
Inorganic Materials

Sales of copper-clad laminates for printed wiring boards decreased

Sales of carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries grew

compared with the previous fiscal year reflecting the decreasing

compared with the previous fiscal year with the growing demand

sales of those for use as substrates in semiconductor packages.

for their use in environmentally-friendly automobiles.
Sales of carbon products increased compared with the previous fiscal year due to the recovering demand of carbon brushes

Sales of photosensitive dry films for printed wiring boards
increased compared with the previous fiscal year by capturing the
robust demand in China.

for their use in automobiles showing a sales increase.
Sales of ceramics increased greatly compared with the previous
fiscal year with the recovering demand for their use in semiconductor manufacturing equipment showing the increasing sales.
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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Review of Operations

ADVANCED COMPONENTS AND SYSTEMS SEGMENT

High Layer Printed Wiring Boards

Disk Brake Pads

Percentage of Net Sales

Operating Results

%

Billions of yen

Lead Acid Batteries

2010*

Years ended March 31

49.3

Net Sales

2011

214.6

245.5

Operating Income

6.2

12.4

Operating Income Margin

2.9%

5.0%

* Data for the year ended March 31, 2010, has been recalculated in accordance with the new segments.

In the Advanced Components and Systems Segment, sales increased 14.4% year on year, to ¥245.5 billion, and operating income
increased 98.6% year on year, to ¥12.4 billion. This was due to steady demand for automotive products from emerging countries and
growing sales of batteries for environmentally-friendly automobiles.

Automotive Products

Others

Sales of interior and exterior plastic molded products, friction

Sales of batteries rose greatly compared with the previous fiscal

materials, and powder metal products rose compared with the

year reflecting the increased sales of those for new automobiles,

previous fiscal year due to a recovery in the automobile market.

due to the growing demand for their use in environmentally-friendly
automobiles, in addition to the expanded use for automobile repair.

Electronics Components
Sales of printed wiring boards remained almost the same compared

12

Sales of capacitors increased compared with the previous
fiscal year for their use in wind power generation.

with the previous fiscal year due to the impact of foreign currency,

In diagnostics / instruments, sales increased compared with

despite the increasing demand for their use in mobile devices,

the previous fiscal year due to increased sales mainly for allergy

in addition to the recovery in demand for semiconductor testers.

diagnostic kit.

Topics
News Release Date
April 22, 2010
Decision on a Second Production Line of Carbon Anode
Materials for Lithium Ion Batteries
Hitachi Chemical has decided to add a second line at its Yamazaki
Works manufacturing facility for production of carbon anode
materials for lithium ion batteries for installation in environmentally-friendly hybrid electric vehicles (HEVs), electric vehicles
(EVs), and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEVs). The Company
invested about ¥2 billion in the line in order to meet demand from
new customers. In light of growing demand, the Company plans to
increase capacity several times during the next few years. It will
invest approximately ¥10 billion in this effort. We will work to maintain the world’s leading market share in the field of carbon anode
materials for lithium ion batteries for vehicles by aggressively
expanding capacity.

June 30, 2010
SGL Group and Hitachi Chemical Agree On Further Cooperation
for Lithium Ion Batteries in Europe
SGL Group—The Carbon Company—and Hitachi Chemical
reached an agreement to extend their comprehensive and mutual
cooperation to supply anode material solutions for lithium ion batteries for the European automotive and industrial markets. SGL
Group and Hitachi Chemical already have a long-lasting relationship in the consumer battery market (mobile devices). SGL Group
will provide its broad manufacturing capabilities and technology
expertise in Europe while Hitachi Chemical, as the leading supplier
with the world’s leading market share in carbon anode materials for
lithium ion batteries for mobile devices, will contribute through its
research and development capabilities as well as its product and
application competence. In addition Hitachi Chemical will provide
sales and technical services to the customers through its European subsidiary. The combined strength of both companies will
now allow customers in Europe to obtain the best available technology at a competitive cost from European production locations.

September 8, 2010
Development of “CF Series,” a Conductive Film for Solar Cells
Hitachi Chemical has developed “CF Series,” a conductive
film for solar cell. CF Series is a conductive film for bonding tab
ribbon when connecting crystalline silicon solar cell in
series; it is also applicable to
thin-film and organic compound PV modules. It can be
used as an alternative to
solder and enables the low-

temperature bonding of cells to tab ribbons. Currently, sample
evaluation work is in progress with many customers, targeting
annual sales of ¥10 billion in fiscal 2015 to meet the trend of
spreading solar cell systems.

October 27, 2010
Full-scale Entry into Touch Panel-Related Materials Market
with Optically Clear Adhesive Film “FINESET”
Hitachi Chemical is now expanding its production system for the
optically clear adhesive film “FINESET” and forgoing ahead with
a full-scale entry into the market for touch panel-related materials. FINESET is a highly specialized optically clear adhesive film
that fills interlayer spaces between touch panel-related components such as a LCD module and a touch panel, a touch panel
and a cover glass, etc. FINESET realizes high quality image
reproduction and high reliability under various environments,
maintaining high visible light transmittance and preventing corrosion of electrodes caused by the respective adherent components. FINESET is now under sales promotion targeting displays
in which an LCD module and a touch panel are combined (touch
screen), and it has already begun to be employed in some customers’ applications. An
annual sales target of ¥12
billion has been set for
fiscal 2012 based on
expanded future growth in
the market for touch panelrelated materials.
FINESET

October 29 and November 24, 2010
Announcement of Establishment of Manufacturing Subsidiary
and Management Headquarters in China
Hitachi Chemical has decided to establish a manufacturing
subsidiary, Hitachi Chemical (Nantong) Company, Ltd., to produce
advanced performance resins and chemical materials in eastern
China. The Company has also decided to establish a wholly-owned
management headquarters in China, Hitachi Chemical (China)
Company, Ltd. (HCC). Based on the newly established HCC, we
will further expand our business in China through strategic
strengthening of the control of operations, marketing, technical
management, finance and governance within the Hitachi Chemical
Group companies in China. This approach will ensure consistency in our business strategies and achieve the highest level of
synergistic effects.

CF Series, a Conductive Film for Solar Cell
(Right) and Solar Cell
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2011
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Board of Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers
As of June 21, 2011

Yasuji Nagase

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Takashi Urano

Keiichi Takeda

Yoshio Osawa

Takemoto Ohto

Nobuo Mochida

Shigeru Azuhata

Directors

Committee Members

Executive Ofﬁcers

Yasuji Nagase

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Akira Kaneko

Chairman of the Board

Yasuji Nagase

Representative Executive Ofﬁcer,
President and Chief Executive
Ofﬁcer

Executive Ofﬁcer
(Technology innovation management)

Committee Chairman

Kazuyuki Tanaka*
Director

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Committee Member

Takashi Urano
Director

Yoshio Osawa
Committee Member

Keiichi Takeda
Director

Yoshio Osawa
Outside Director
(Chairman, Konomi, Inc.)

Takemoto Ohto
Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida
Committee Member

Masayuki Kan
Kazuyoshi Tsunoda
Representative Executive Ofﬁcer,
Senior Vice President and
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Oversight of automotive parts,
Diagnostics)

Kiyoshi Togawa
Senior Vice President and
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Management strategies,
Oversight of group companies)

Takemoto Ohto

Shigeru Azuhata

Outside Director
(Advisor, NICHIREI Corp.)

Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yoshihiro Nomura

Takashi Urano

Vice President and Executive
Ofﬁcer
(China business)

Outside Director
(Director, Chairman of the Board,
Hitachi Metals, Ltd.
Representative Executive Ofﬁcer,
Executive Vice President and
Executive Ofﬁcer, Hitachi, Ltd.)

Committee Chairman

Keiichi Takeda
Committee Member

Shigeru Hayashida

Yoshio Osawa

Executive Ofﬁcer
(Innovative technologies,
Life sciences)

Shigeru Azuhata

Committee Member

Outside Director
(Senior Vice President and
Executive Ofﬁcer, Hitachi, Ltd.)

Takemoto Ohto

* Serves concurrently as Executive Ofﬁcer

Committee Member

Shigeru Azuhata
Committee Member

Hiroki Sashima
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Manufacturing, Purchasing,
Production control and logistics,
Oversight of technology innovation
management)

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Yushi Kusunose

Committee Chairman

Executive Ofﬁcer
(Sales)

Nobuo Mochida
Committee Member

Shunichiro Uchimura

Shigeru Azuhata

Executive Ofﬁcer
(Automotive parts)

Committee Member
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Executive Ofﬁcer
(Oversight of CSR, Corporate export
regulation and control, Quality
assurance, Human resources)

Itsuo Watanabe
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Research and development,
New business development,
Intellectual property)

Misao Nakagawa
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Materials for printed wiring boards,
Printed wiring boards)

Toshihiko Miyauchi
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Management strategies,
Group companies)

Hisashi Maruyama
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Corporate communication including
environment & safety management
and internal control, Finance)

Masami Yamamori
Executive Ofﬁcer
(Functional materials)

Corporate Governance
Hitachi Chemical believes that one of its most important management tasks is establishing a management structure
that is sound, highly transparent, and capable of responding swiftly to changes in the market. As part of these efforts,
in June 2003, the Company adopted the “Company with Committees” system, which separates operational and supervisory functions to achieve highly objective, transparent management.

Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer, and cooperates in conducting audits if instructed

The Board of Directors of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., which is composed

to do so by the Audit Committee.

of eight Directors, including four Outside Directors, holds regular monthly
meetings and extraordinary meetings when necessary. The Outside

Executive Officers’ Meeting

Directors are management executives, professionals, and other individu-

Composed of all Executive Officers, the Executive Officers’ Meeting acts as

als selected for their familiarity with the Company’s management envi-

an advisory body to the Chief Executive Officer to ensure prudent deci-

ronment and knowledge of relevant fields such as R&D, where the

sions through the multifaceted study of important issues that may affect

Company has important management tasks.

either Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. or the Hitachi Chemical Group. The Exec-

In addition to approving the budgets and accounts, the Board of

utive Officers’ Meeting, as a rule, holds regular meetings twice a month

Directors uses the monthly and quarterly performance reports from the

and extraordinary meetings when necessary to accelerate decision-mak-

Executive Officers to manage the budget and business results. In order

ing and business operations. It participates in managing the budget and

to ensure the separation of operational and supervisory functions, the

business results by executing the decisions of the Board of Directors when

Company does not allow the Chairman of the Board to serve concurrently

the budget is either determined or revised, and by presenting monthly and

as an Executive Officer, and limits the number of Directors concurrently

quarterly performance reports to the Board of Directors.

serving as Executive Officers to the required minimum of one. During

Executive Officers and employees promptly report matters required

fiscal 2010, the Board of Directors met 14 times, with a 98% participa-

by law to the Audit Committee, as well as decisions by Executive Officers

tion rate among Directors.

in connection with important matters that affect the Company or Group

To strengthen the supervisory function of the Board of Directors, the

as a whole, the results of internal audits conducted by the divisions in

Nominating Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Compensation

charge, and the status of reports made by the internal reporting system

Committee, each of which includes Outside Directors, have been estab-

maintained by the Executive Officers.

lished under the Board of Directors. During fiscal 2010, the Nominating
Compensation Committee met 4 times. The Nominating Committee

Policies Related to Decisions on the Compensation of Directors
and Executive Officers

selected candidates for the position of Director for presentation to the

The Compensation Committee yearly discusses and decides the policies to

Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting. The Audit Committee audited

decide the compensation of Directors and Executive Officers.

Committee met 2 times, the Audit Committee met 13 times, and the

the execution of the duties of the Directors and Executive Officers. The

The compensation of Directors and Executive Officers is set at a level

Compensation Committee set the policies for deciding the compensation

that will motivate these individuals to pursue improved corporate value in the

of the Directors and the Executive Officers, based on which it deter-

medium- to long-term, rather than only focusing on short-term improve-

mined the content of compensation for each individual. To ensure its

ments. The level is also set to facilitate the Company’s efforts to fill these posi-

independence, the Audit Committee conducts audit activities with spe-

tions with a diverse range of superior personnel. Further, the level of

cialized staff who are employees independent from the Executive Offi-

compensation is set at a level to be competitive compared to other companies

cers. The Auditing Office performs internal audit work by order of the

in the same industry as well as companies of similar scale in other industries.

Business Execution and Management Supervision Framework

Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting
(* 1 Director serves concurrently as Executive Officer)

Board of Directors (8 Directors* including 4 Outside Directors)

Supervision

Execution

Nominating Committee

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

6 Directors including
4 Outside Directors

3 Directors including
2 Outside Directors

5 Directors including
3 Outside Directors

Main task
Decisions on proposals for election
and dismissal of Directors

Main task
Decisions on compensation
of Directors and Executive Officers

Main task
Audit of Directors’ and Executive Officers’
business operations and preparation of audit report
Decisions on candidates for Independent Auditor

President and Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President
and Executive Officer, Vice President and Executive Officer,
Executive Officer

CSR Management Sector

Independent Auditor
(Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC)

Executive Officers’ Meeting
(An advisory body to the Chief Executive Officer)
Considers issues of importance which may affect
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and the Group

Auditing Office
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The compensation of Directors is composed of the monthly-based

As a part of the fundamental operation of this system, the effectiveness

compensation and the year-end compensation. The monthly-based compen-

of the internal control system of the Company as well as the Group is

sation is determined, in principle, based on the roles and duties of each indi-

evaluated by the Internal Control Committee—which is chaired by the

vidual Director. The year-end compensation is determined based on the roles

Executive Officer—primarily consisting of responsible parties from such

and duties of each individual Director. The extent to which the compensation

areas as the CSR Management Sector, Marketing & Sales Operations,

of Directors is affected by the financial results of the Company is limited.

Manufacturing Operations, and the Auditing Office. The results of these

The compensation of Executive Officers, as well as Executive Officers

evaluations are decided while taking into consideration audits conducted

that serve concurrently as Directors, is composed of monthly-based com-

by the Auditing Office and the Independent Auditor, and are reported to

pensation and performance-based compensation. The monthly-based

the Executive Officers’ Meeting and the Audit Committee. If, through this

compensation, in principle, is set for each position based on the roles and

process of evaluation, inadequacies are detected in the internal control

duties of each individual position. The amount of performance-based

systems, then the Company will work expediently to improve the system.

compensation is determined to reflect the extent to which the Company

Specifically, the Company’s standards of corporate conduct serve as

met its financial targets, the extent to which the Company’s financial

a basic code of conduct throughout Hitachi Chemical, and the key parts

results improved, the performance of the division for which the Executive

of other important rules and basic systems are also shared across the

Officer is responsible, and the personal performance of the Executive Offi-

Group. While protecting the independence of each Group company, this

cer. However, this amount must be within a predetermined range.

promotes smooth coordination, raises the efficiency of internal audits,
and makes the internal control system effective.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers for Fiscal 2010

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2009, J-SOX requires the

Number

Amount of compensation
(Millions of yen)

Directors
(Outside Directors)

12
(7)

180
(38)

financial reporting as part of the “Yuho” business report. Management

Executive Ofﬁcers

15

606

accordance with the standards on management assessment of internal

Total

27

786

Classiﬁcations

Notes:
1. The compensation amounts presented are rounded off to the nearest ¥1 million.
2. The compensation paid to Directors who served concurrently as Executive Ofﬁcers is classiﬁed and shown
separately as the Director compensation amount and the Executive Ofﬁcer compensation amount, with the
total for each classiﬁcation included in the total compensation amount of each classiﬁcation.
3. Included in the amount of compensation is unpaid bonuses related to year-end distributions (for Directors)
and performance-based compensation (for Executive Ofﬁcers) to be paid as of June 2011 amounting to
¥144 million. However, the actual amount of compensation paid is decided by the Compensation
Committee based on the policies outlined in the Policies Related to Decisions on the Compensation of
Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers section above.
4. Included in the number of Directors above are the four directors, three of which are Outside Directors, who
retired as of June 23, 2010, following the 61st Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, with the monthlybased compensation paid to these Directors from April to June 2010 included in the amount of
compensation.
5. In addition to the amounts above, at a meeting of the Compensation Committee held on June 23, 2010,
retirement beneﬁts of ¥15 million were approved to be paid to the two Directors that resigned from their
positions following the 61st Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting held on the same day. Further, ¥14
million of the amount paid came from reserves for retirement beneﬁts included in the total amount paid to
Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers listed in the annual reports for previous ﬁscal years.
6. In addition to the amounts above, at a meeting of the Compensation Committee held on March 23, 2011,
retirement beneﬁts of ¥14 million were approved to be paid to an Executive Ofﬁcer that resigned from his
position on March 31, 2011. Further, this amount was included in the reserves for retirement beneﬁts that
were part of the total amount paid to Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers listed in the annual reports for
previous ﬁscal years.

inclusion of a management report on the Company’s internal control over
has conducted its yearly evaluation of the Company’s internal controls in
controls published by the Business Accounting Council of the Financial
Services Agency (FSA) (“Standards for Management Assessment and
Audit Concerning Internal Control over Financial Reporting”). As a result,
management has concluded that the Company has maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2011. The Independent Auditor has expressed its opinion that the management report
fairly represents actual conditions.

Risk Management System
The Company has created the Guidelines for Implementing Measures to
Counter Risk at Hitachi Chemical. This document prepares for specific
target risk scenarios that could affect the entire Company by specifying
the responsibilities of all executives and employees in preventing these
risks, the composition and role of the Emergency Response Task Force
to be put in place during emergencies, and the communication stan-

Compensation of Independent Auditor

dards to be observed. Additionally, the CSR Management Sector, in

Compensation of Independent Auditor for Fiscal 2010
Classiﬁcations

The total amount of monetary and other ﬁnancial
beneﬁts payable by the Company and its subsidiaries
The amount of compensation payable to the Independent Auditor by the Company (*)

cooperation with related divisions, conducts regular audits of each ComAmount of compensation
(Millions of yen)

121

pany division internally as well as Group companies to check the status
of the risk management systems and carries out comprehensive auditing
in preventing risks from occurring and dealing with them if they occur. It

56

Notes:
1. The Company pays compensation to the Independent Auditor, and other such people, for duties other
than those described in the Certiﬁed Public Accountants Act Article 2 (1), such as veriﬁcation of the
earning reports of overseas personnel.
2. In the audit contract between the Company and the Independent Auditor, the compensation paid for
audits performed under the Corporation Law and audits performed under the Securities Exchange Law
are not broken down and cannot be practically separated, and therefore both are included in the amount
in (*).
3. The Company’s audit of overseas subsidiaries is carried out by a certiﬁed public accountant or an audit
ﬁrm (including people or organizations with equivalent qualiﬁcations in the country in which the overseas
subsidiary operates) other than the Company’s Independent Auditor.

also requires each division to undertake self-audits.
Risk Management System

Board of Directors
Audit Committee
President and Chief Executive Officer
CSR Management Sector

Internal Control System
The Company has built and operates a system to ensure that execution of
business operations conforms to laws and the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, and to ensure that other business operations are appropriate.
16
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Six-Year Summary
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note 1)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2011

For the year:
¥ 497,452

¥455,287

¥488,638

¥626,929

¥628,805

¥602,703

$5,993,398

Operating income

43,471

38,341

19,938

60,493

55,750

53,833

523,747

Net income

18,943

23,509

2,740

31,438

32,766

31,593

228,229

7,497

6,664

6,665

6,636

5,806

4,768

90,325

Capital expenditures

30,432

20,984

35,972

37,383

37,661

38,687

366,651

Depreciation and amortization

28,985

31,666

34,560

32,866

28,077

27,200

349,217

Research and development expenses

26,382

25,402

27,617

28,166

27,835

26,934

317,855

¥ 432,184

¥426,586

¥391,350

¥458,741

¥470,864

¥444,185

$5,207,036

141,873

143,984

127,762

183,771

202,508

205,148

1,709,313

27,151

24,557

30,806

37,210

39,312

37,522

327,120

290,311

282,602

263,588

274,970

268,356

215,235

3,497,723

90.96

¥ 112.88

13.15

¥ 151.60

¥ 158.02

¥ 152.01

$ 1.10

—

—

13.15

151.57

157.95

151.95

—

Net sales

Cash dividends

At year-end:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities (Note 2)
Total net assets
(Stockholders’ equity) (Note 3)
Per share data:
Net income (basic)
Net income (diluted)
Cash dividends
Net assets (Note 3)

¥

¥

36.00

32.00

32.00

32.00

28.00

23.00

0.43

1,320.30

1,289.11

1,203.92

1,251.66

1,175.49

1,037.83

15.91

Value indicators:
Operating margin (%)

8.7

8.4

4.1

9.6

8.9

8.9

Return on sales (%)

3.8

5.2

0.6

5.0

5.2

5.2

Return on equity (ROE) (%) (Note 3)

7.0

9.1

1.1

12.5

14.3

16.0

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

4.4

5.7

0.6

6.8

7.2

7.4

63.6

62.9

64.1

56.6

51.8

48.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

13.2

12.7

12.4

13.7

13.6

14.1

4.0

3.4

3.4

4.2

4.1

4.2

15,930

15,267

15,289

15,303

17,502

17,065

Net worth ratio
(Stockholders’ equity ratio) (%) (Note 3)
Debt/Equity ratio (DER) (times) (Note 3)
Inventory turnover (times)
Net property, plant and
equipment turnover (times)
Number of employees

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥83=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo
Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2011.
2. Interest-bearing liabilities include trade notes discounted.
3. From the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company has adopted a new accounting standard for the presentation of net assets in the balance sheet, which reclassiﬁes former stockholders’
equity, minority interests, and valuation and translation adjustments as net assets. The methods of determining the amounts of each category have not changed from the previous ﬁscal
year. Amounts for prior years have not been restated.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Operations and Finances
For the Year Ended March 31, 2011

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

initiatives geared toward strengthening overseas operations. Through

Consolidated Subsidiaries

these efforts, the Group ambitiously pursued the expansion of its opera-

As of March 31, 2011, Hitachi Chemical consisted of 51 companies, one

tions on a global scale. As a result, both net sales and operating income

company more than on March 31, 2010, due to the effect of a net

increased compared with the previous fiscal year. Net income, however,

increase in newly established and absorbed consolidated subsidiaries.

decreased due to the recording of impairment losses on fixed assets and

As one facet of its efforts to strengthen its overseas operations, Hitachi

the cost of restoration of damaged production facilities stemming from

Chemical established three new consolidated subsidiaries: Hitachi

the Great East Japan Earthquake.

Storage Battery (Thailand) Co., Ltd. and Hitachi Powdered Metals
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. in Thailand; and PT Hitachi Powdered Metals

Net Sales

Indonesia in Indonesia. Meanwhile, KANTO SYOJI Co., Ltd. was absorbed

Net sales increased ¥42.2 billion year on year, or 9.3%, to ¥497.5 billion.

by Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd., and Minori Engineering & Service Co.,
Ltd. was absorbed by Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd.

In the Functional Materials segment, sales of epoxy molding
compounds for semiconductors were up year on year due to strong
demand in such items as home appliances in China. Also, the perfor-

An Overview of Economic Trends and Results in the Fiscal Year
Under Review

mance of slurry for chemical mechanical planarization increased

In fiscal 2010, the fiscal year under review ended March 31, 2011, the

Sales of photosensitive dry films for printed wiring boards (PWBs) were

gradual trend toward recovery in the global economy continued, supported

up year on year due to higher demand in China. Additionally, sales of

by renewed consumer spending in the United States. Additionally,

carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries showed a year-on-year

consumer spending and other forms of domestic demand were strong in

increase due to higher sales for use in environmentally-friendly automo-

emerging countries such as China and India, thereby fueling further

biles. Conversely, sales of die bonding materials for semiconductors were

economic expansion. There was also a recovery trend seen across Europe,

down year on year due to the intensification of competition. Further,

though the extent of recovery varied from country to country.

sales of adhesive films and anisotropic conductive films for displays

compared with the previous fiscal year due to the recovery of demand.

In the Japanese economy, economic growth was halted in the third

declined compared with the previous fiscal year due to reduced demand.

quarter of the fiscal year due to the reduction of “eco-points” offered by

As a result of the above, net sales in the Functional Materials segment

the government for the purchase of home electronics and the ceasing of

increased ¥11.3 billion year on year, or 4.7%, to ¥252.0 billion.

government grants for the purchase of environmentally-friendly automo-

In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, sales of interior

biles. However, at the beginning of the 2011 calendar year, recovery of

and exterior plastic molded products, friction materials, and powder

exports and production activities were seen, representing the economy’s

metal products were up year on year due to the recovery of the automo-

return to a growth track. However, the Great East Japan Earthquake,

bile market. Sales of batteries also increased substantially compared

which occurred in March 2011, subsequently struck a serious blow to

with the previous fiscal year due to higher sales of batteries for new

the Japanese economy.

cars following strong demand for environmentally-friendly automobiles

The damages sustained by the facilities of production bases in the

as well as increased usage of our products as replacement batteries.

Western Area of Ibaraki Prefecture as well as in Chiba Prefecture were

As a result of the above, net sales in the Advanced Components and

minimal. However, certain production facilities at bases in the Hitachi

Systems segment increased ¥30.9 billion year on year, or 14.4%, to

and Kashima areas of Ibaraki Prefecture as well as in Tochigi Prefecture

¥245.5 billion.

were damaged. As a result, we were forced to temporarily suspend

Overseas sales amounted to ¥216.1 billion, representing a year-on-

operations. Nevertheless, the Group pooled its efforts toward the resto-

year increase of ¥20.7 billion, primarily attributable to increased demand

ration of operations at these production bases and we have since

from China and other Asian countries. Accordingly, overseas sales

managed to resume production at almost all of these bases. Unfortu-

accounted for 43.4% of total net sales, 0.5 percentage points higher

nately though, Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Namie Japan Brake

than in the previous fiscal year.

Co., Ltd., both located in Namie-machi, Fukushima Prefecture, are within
the government-mandated evacuation zone that was established

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

following the accident at the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station.

Cost of sales increased ¥30.8 billion year on year, or 9.0%, to ¥373.2

Therefore, we are currently unable to enter the premises and have thus

billion. However, cost of sales as a percentage of net sales declined 0.2

deemed that operations there will not resume in the immediate future.

percentage points, to 75.0%, due to our efforts to reduce costs amidst

While the fiscal year under review ended with the occurrence of the

soaring material prices.

disaster in March 2011, the Group worked throughout the fiscal year to

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses rose ¥6.2 billion

create new products and develop new businesses, while focusing its

year on year, or 8.4%, to ¥80.8 billion. SG&A expenses as a percentage

management resources on growth fields. It also advanced a number of

of net sales edged down 0.2 percentage points, to 16.2%.
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In the fiscal year under review, the Hitachi Chemical Group actively

Losses on disaster included the expenses incurred during the resto-

invested management resources in the development of new high-value-

ration of facilities at production bases located mainly in Ibaraki Prefec-

added products and in promising new fields. Accordingly, research and

ture. Also, it included the impairment loss on fixed assets and the loss on

development (R&D) expenses were up ¥1.0 billion year on year, or 3.9%,

valuation and retirement of inventories associated with the subsidiaries in

to ¥26.4 billion, representing 5.3% of net sales.

Namie-machi, Fukushima Prefecture—located within the governmentmandated evacuation zone that was established following the accident at

Operating Income

the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station—where operations will not

Operating income recorded a year-on-year increase of ¥5.1 billion, or

resume in the immediate future.

13.4%, to ¥43.5 billion, and the operating income margin was 8.7%, up

Net Income

0.3 percentage points.
In the Functional Materials segment, operating income declined ¥1.1

Income taxes were up ¥2.5 billion year on year, or 21.3%, to ¥14.0

billion year on year, or 3.4%, to ¥31.1 billion, largely due to unfavorable

billion. The effective tax rate, defined as the ratio of income taxes to

foreign exchange rates stemming from the persistence of the strong yen.

income before income taxes and minority interests, rose 8.3 percentage

The operating income margin in this segment decreased 1.1 percentage

points, to 39.9%.

point, to 12.3%. In the Advanced Components and Systems segment,
operating income rose ¥6.2 billion year on year, or 98.6%, to ¥12.4 billion,

Minority interests in income increased ¥0.6 billion year on year, to
¥2.1 billion, due to higher income.

supported by the recovery of demand for automotive parts. The operating
income margin in this segment was up 2.1 percentage points, to 5.0%.

Due to the above, net income in the fiscal year under review
decreased ¥4.6 billion year on year, or 19.4%, to ¥18.9 billion. As a ratio
to net sales, this represented a 1.4 percentage point decline, to 3.8%.

Other Income (Expenses)

Return on equity (ROE) was down 2.1 percentage points, to 7.0%, and

Net other expenses amounted to ¥8.5 billion, representing a ¥6.6 billion

return on assets (ROA) decreased 1.3 percentage points, to 4.4%. Net

year-on-year increase.

income per share (basic) declined from ¥112.88 in the previous fiscal

While we recorded income of ¥2.3 billion in the form of reversal of

year to ¥90.96 in the fiscal year under review.

allowance for doubtful accounts, this was offset by the loss on disaster of
impairment losses on fixed assets of ¥1.8 billion recorded due to the

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Cash Flows

decreased profitability of a part of the Electronic Components Business.

Cash deposits as of March 31, 2011, stood at ¥96.8 billion, a decrease

Accordingly, net other expenses in the fiscal year under review showed a

of ¥0.8 billion compared with the previous fiscal year-end.

¥10.3 billion incurred following the Great East Japan Earthquake and

significant year-on-year increase.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaled ¥44.0 billion, down

Net Sales

Research and Development
Expenses / Percentage
of Net Sales

Billions of yen

Billions of yen

%
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¥12.5 billion compared with the previous fiscal year. This decrease was

was primarily due to a rise in retained earnings resulting in a ¥11.7 billion

primarily due to higher income taxes paid.

increase in stockholders’ equity, which offset a ¥5.2 billion decrease in
total accumulated other comprehensive income.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥35.7 billion, an

The ratio of net assets to total assets (net worth ratio) increased to

increase of ¥15.7 billion year on year. This largely reflected greater

63.6% from 62.9% at the end of the previous fiscal year. The debt/equity

outflows to purchase property, plant and equipment.
Net cash used in financing activities was ¥6.8 billion, a decline of

ratio (DER), defined as total interest-bearing liabilities divided by net

¥5.8 billion compared with the previous fiscal year. This was mainly due

assets, was relatively unchanged from the end of the previous fiscal year,

to a decrease in the redemption of bonds payable.

at 0.1 times. Furthermore, net assets per share of common stock
outstanding as of March 31, 2011, increased to ¥1,320.30 from
¥1,289.11 as of the previous fiscal year-end.

Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, Billions of yen

Cash ﬂows from operating activities

2011

2010

2009

Capital Expenditures

¥ 44.0

¥ 56.5

¥ 55.5

Capital expenditures in the fiscal year under review increased ¥9.4 billion

Cash ﬂows from investing activities

(35.7)

(20.0)

(41.6)

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities

(6.8)

(12.6)

(13.8)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

96.8

97.6

74.0

year on year, to ¥30.4 billion. The Company conducted such expenditures
based on the rigorous selection of investments to bolster production
capacity for promising high-value-added products. Major investments
included those to boost the production capacity of carbon anode materials
for lithium ion batteries for use in environmentally-friendly automobiles and

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets

the industrial-use lithium ion batteries produced by Shin-Kobe Electric

Total assets as of March 31, 2011, stood at ¥432.2 billion, an increase of

Machinery Co., Ltd.

¥5.6 billion compared with the previous fiscal year-end. This increase

Depreciation and amortization decreased ¥2.7 billion year on year, to

mainly reflected higher year-on-year trade receivables, leading to an

¥29.0 billion.

increase in total current assets of ¥13.5 billion.
Total liabilities as of March 31, 2011, were ¥141.9 billion, a decrease
of ¥2.1 billion compared with the previous fiscal year-end. The principal
factor was a decrease in accured income taxes, which resulted in a
decrease of ¥3.7 billion in total current liabilities.
Total net assets as of March 31, 2011, amounted to ¥290.3 billion, an
increase of ¥7.7 billion compared with the previous fiscal year-end. This

Return on Equity (ROE) /
Return on Assets (ROA)
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BASIC POLICY ON THE APPROPRIATION OF EARNINGS DIVIDENDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011, AND THE YEAR ENDING
MARCH 31, 2012
The Company considers its operating environment, performance, future
business prospects, and the payout ratio in allocating earnings to
dividends and internal capital reserves. Internal capital reserves are
used to effectively build on its strong financial structures, while investing
in the R&D of promising new high-value-added products and adding
vitality to existing businesses.
Based on these policies, the Company increased cash dividends per
share of common stock ¥4, to ¥36, for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2011. As for fiscal 2011, the year ending March 31, 2012, the Company
intends to issue cash dividends of ¥36 per share, the same level as
fiscal 2010.

OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2012
In regard to the Company’s outlook for fiscal 2011, the year ending March
31, 2012, the Company initially chose not to release forecasts due to the
difficulty of rationally calculating the forecasts based on the operating
environment created by the impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake.
However, the Company was since able to formulate forecasts based on
recent trends in the operating environment and the Company’s performance. These forecasts were subsequently released on June 8, 2011. In
these forecasts, the Company projects its financial results in fiscal 2011
to be as follows: net sales of ¥510.0 billion, up 2.5%; operating income of
¥40.0 billion, down 8.0%; ordinary income of ¥39.5 billion, down 12.3%;
and net income of ¥23.0 billion, an increase of 21.4%.

Total Net Assets (Stockholders’ Equity) /
Net Worth Ratio
(Stockholders’ Equity Ratio)
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BUSINESS AND OTHER RISKS

(5) Public Regulations

Hitachi Chemical operates globally in a diverse range of fields, using

Hitachi Chemical’s business activities are subject to various regulations in

sophisticated, specialized technologies. For this reason, a variety of

the countries in which it operates. The regulations include legal obliga-

factors may materially impact Group operations. These major business

tions related to foreign investment, trade, competition, intellectual

and other risks are described below. Statements concerning the future

properties, taxes, exchange rates, the environment, and recycling. Signif-

represent the judgment of Hitachi Chemical as of March 31, 2011.

icant changes to these regulations could restrict operations, increase
costs, and exert a material impact on Group performance.

(1) Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Hitachi Chemical holds assets and liabilities from overseas operations

(6) Financial Risk

that are affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Due to

Hitachi Chemical holds equities and other marketable securities. A

product exports and raw material imports usually denominated in U.S.

decrease in the value of these marketable securities may exert a material

dollars, and at times in other local currencies, exchange rate fluctuations

impact on the financial position and performance of the Group. In

may exert a material impact on the performance of the Group. The

addition, long-term procurement of funds from capital markets exposes

appreciation of the yen against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may

the Group to risk associated with interest rate fluctuations and credit.

exert a material impact on earnings by weakening the competitiveness of
products exported to overseas markets. The Group pursues measures to

(7) Retirement Beneﬁt Obligations

attenuate the risk from exchange rate fluctuations, but cannot guarantee

Hitachi Chemical bears considerable retirement benefit expense obliga-

that exchange rate fluctuations will not affect performance.

tions that are computed using actuarial calculations. These appraisals
involve important assumptions about conditions for estimating the fair

(2) Major Raw Material Price Fluctuations

value of pension assets including mortality rates, decrement rates, retire-

Many of Hitachi Chemical’s products use petrochemical products as raw

ment rates, salary changes, discount rates, and expected rates of return

materials. The purchase prices of petrochemical products are suscep-

on pension assets. In making these assumptions, the Group must take

tible to fluctuations in crude oil prices. In addition, fluctuations in the

into account numerous factors including personnel conditions, current

markets for other raw materials and export regulations in producing

market conditions, and future interest rate trends. Although the Group

countries may increase procurement costs or make it difficult to procure

makes reasonable assumptions about conditions based on key factors, it

the necessary quantities. These factors may exert a material impact on

cannot guarantee that projections will agree with actual results. Lower

Group performance.

discount rates lead to an increase in actuarial retirement benefit obligations. An increase or decrease in retirement benefit obligations may influ-

(3) Acquisitions, Joint Ventures, and Strategic Alliances

ence the actuarial difference amortized over the period of employment.

Hitachi Chemical may acquire outside companies, establish joint ventures,

Accordingly, changes in conditions may exert a material impact on the

and implement strategic alliances in order to develop new technologies

financial position and performance of the Group.

and products, and raise competitiveness. These complex initiatives
involve integration of businesses, technologies, products, and personnel

(8) Relationship with the Parent Company

that requires time and expense. Failure to implement these initiatives as

As of March 31, 2011, Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company of Hitachi

planned may exert a material impact on Group operations. The success

Chemical Co., Ltd., holds 51.2 percent of the Company’s total number

of these business alliances is determined in part by factors beyond the

of shares issued and 51.4 percent of the total number of shares with

Group’s control including alliance partner decisions and capabilities, and

voting rights (exclusive of indirect shareholdings). Hitachi, Ltd.

market trends. Implementation of these initiatives may cause the Group

oversees numerous associated companies, and engages in a wide

to incur acquisition-related expenses including expenses for integration

variety of operations covering the manufacture, sale, and service of

and restructuring of acquired businesses. In addition, the Group cannot

products in eleven industrial fields: Information & Telecommunication

guarantee that it will succeed in integrating acquired businesses or that

Systems, Power Systems, Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems,

its initiatives will achieve all or part of initial objectives.

High Functional Materials & Components, Automotive Systems, and
Financial Services. Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. is part of the Hitachi Group’s

(4) Potential Risks in Overseas Activities

High Functional Materials & Components, and two of its eight Directors

Hitachi Chemical produces and sells products in Japan, countries in

serve concurrently as Director or Executive Officer of Hitachi, Ltd.

Asia, the United States, and in other regions. Exposure to political and

(as of June 21, 2011). The close relations between Hitachi Chemical

social risks in these overseas markets may exert a material impact on the

Co., Ltd. and its parent company in areas including technical and

financial position and performance of the Group.

personnel cooperation and product supply may lead to situations in
which Hitachi Group developments exert a material impact on the
management strategy and other policies of Hitachi Chemical.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2011 and 2010
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of yen

Assets

2011

2010

2011

¥ 39,984

¥ 33,434

56,911

64,169

685,675

11,576

12,505

139,470

Current assets:
Cash and deposits (Notes 3 and 20)
Deposits to related companies (Notes 3, 20 and 24)

$

481,735

Trade receivables (Note 3):
Notes
Accounts

95,363

92,554

1,148,952

106,939

105,059

1,288,422

5,691

—

68,566

Inventories (Note 5)

38,583

36,537

464,855

Other current assets (Note 6)

24,601

22,220

296,397

Less allowance for doubtful receivables

(2,559)

(4,734)

Short-term investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4)

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, at cost (Note 7):
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment (Note 8)

Intangible assets

270,150

256,685

(30,831)
3,254,819

525,067

530,311

6,326,109

(404,554)

(403,667)

(4,874,145)

120,513

126,644

1,451,964

6,559

5,737

79,024

Investments and other assets:
Investments in afﬁliated companies under the equity method

5,544

6,717

66,795

Investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4)

11,731

13,397

141,337

Other assets (Notes 6 and 9)

18,501

18,329

222,904

Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Total investments and other assets
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(814)

(923)

(9,807)

34,962

37,520

421,229

¥ 432,184

¥ 426,586

$ 5,207,036

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of yen

Liabilities and Net Assets

2011

2010

2011

Current liabilities:
Short-term debt (Notes 3 and 8)

¥ 12,895

¥ 11,763

$ 155,361

Trade payables (Note 3):
Notes

58

62

699

52,683

54,524

634,735

52,741

54,586

635,434

20,622

22,167

248,458

Accrued income taxes

6,525

11,308

78,614

Provision for loss on disaster

2,461

—

29,651

13,399

12,498

161,434

108,643

112,322

1,308,952

Long-term debt (Notes 3 and 8)

14,031

12,492

169,048

Retirement and severance beneﬁts (Note 9)

16,044

15,552

193,301

3,155

3,618

38,012

141,873

143,984

1,709,313

15,454

15,454

186,193

36,113

36,113

435,096

239,422

227,754

2,884,603

Accounts
Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Other liabilities (Notes 6 and 10)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Net Assets:
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock (Note 13)
Authorized—800,000,000 shares;
Issued—208,364,913 shares in 2011 and
208,364,913 shares in 2010 (Note 11)
Capital surplus (Note 13)
Retained earnings (Note 13)
Treasury stock, at cost,
113,682 shares in 2011 and 109,761 shares in 2010 (Note 14)
Total stockholders’ equity

(188)

(181)

(2,265)

290,801

279,140

3,503,627

1,553

1,985

18,711

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total accumulated other comprehensive income
Minority interests
Total net assets

(41)

(20)

(494)

(17,358)

(12,642)

(209,133)

(15,846)

(10,677)

(190,916)

15,356

14,139

185,012

290,311

282,602

3,497,723

¥432,184

¥426,586

$5,207,036
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Consolidated Statements of Income and
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

(Consolidated Statements of Income)
Net sales
Cost of sales (Note 16)
Gross proﬁt
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 16)
Operating income
Other income (expenses):
Interest income
Dividends income
Equity in earnings (losses) of afﬁliated companies
Foreign exchange losses
Interest expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Product warranty expenses
Loss on valuation of investments in securities
Net gain on sale of investments in securities
Royalty income
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of negative goodwill
Restructuring charges
Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets (Note 17)
Surcharge
Gain on step acquisitions (Note 23)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Loss on adjustment for changes of accounting standard for
asset retirement obligation (Note 1(t)1)
Loss on disaster (Note 18)
Other, net
Income before income taxes and minority interests
Income taxes (Note 6)
Income before minority interests
Minority interests in income
Net income

Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of yen

2011

2010

¥ 497,452
(373,214)
124,238

¥ 455,287
(342,415)
112,872

¥ 488,638
(387,864)
100,774

2009

$ 5,993,398
(4,496,555)
1,496,843

(80,767)
43,471

(74,531)
38,341

(80,836)
19,938

(973,096)
523,747

301
231
1,396
(1,118)
(613)
(1,092)
(402)
(126)
204
1,395
293
645
—
(1,840)
—
392
2,317

337
143
1,091
(1,108)
(639)
(1,434)
(1,524)
(22)
363
1,077
260
837
—
—
—
—
—

653
389
(1,107)
(968)
(1,030)
(1,227)
(528)
(683)
17
1,305
189
645
(430)
(3,138)
(165)
—
—

3,627
2,783
16,819
(13,470)
(7,386)
(13,157)
(4,843)
(1,518)
2,458
16,807
3,530
7,771
—
(22,169)
—
4,723
27,916

(620)
(10,274)
457
(8,454)
35,017

—
—
(1,216)
(1,835)
36,506

—
—
(1,069)
(7,147)
12,791

(7,470)
(123,783)
5,507
(101,855)
421,892

(13,986)
21,031

(11,533)
24,973

(9,227)
3,564

(168,506)
253,386

(2,088)
¥ 18,943

(1,464)
¥ 23,509

¥

(824)
2,740

2011

$

U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Yen

2011

Basic net income per share (Note 19)
Diluted net income per share (Note 19)

¥90.96
—

(25,157)
228,229

2010

2009

¥112.88
—

¥13.15
13.15

2011

$1.10
—

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)

Millions of yen

Income before minority interests

¥21,031

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2011

Other comprehensive income:
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests
(Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)
(a) Comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2010
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests
Total comprehensive income
(b) Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2010
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method
Total other comprehensive income

26

(443)
(25)
(4,736)
(116)
(5,320)
15,711
13,774
¥ 1,937

¥24,050 million
1,651 million
¥25,701 million
¥ 1,554 million
(25) million
(771) million
(30) million
¥ 728 million

$253,386

(5,338)
(301)
(57,060)
(1,398)
(64,097)
189,289
165,952
$ 23,337

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of yen

2011

2010

2009

2011

Common stock (Note 11):
Balance at beginning of year
Exercise of stock options (Note 12)
Balance at end of year

¥ 15,454

¥ 15,454

¥ 15,443

—

—

11

$ 186,193
—

15,454

15,454

15,454

186,193

Capital surplus:
Balance at beginning of year

36,113

36,113

34,334

435,096

Exercise of stock options (Note 12)

—

—

11

—

Exchange of shares

—

—

1,769

—

0

—

36,113

36,113

36,113

435,096

Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock
Balance at end of year

(1)

—

Retained earnings:
227,754

210,554

214,881

2,744,024

Net income

Balance at beginning of year

18,943

23,509

2,740

228,229

Cash dividends (Note 13)

(7,289)

(6,248)

(7,067)

(87,819)

Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock

—

(1)

(0)

Change of scope of equity method

—

(60)

—

—

Other

14

—

—

169

239,422

227,754

210,554

2,884,603

Balance at end of year

—

Treasury stock (Note 14):
Balance at beginning of year
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Balance at end of year

(181)

(138)

(121)

(2,181)

(8)

(44)

(21)

(96)

1

1

4

(188)

(181)

(138)

12
(2,265)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year

1,985
(432)
1,553

533
1,452
1,985

2,200
(1,667)
533

23,916
(5,205)
18,711

Deferred gains or losses on hedges:
Balance at beginning of year

(20)

(7)

74

(241)

Net change during the year

(21)

(13)

(81)

(253)

Balance at end of year

(41)

(20)

(7)

(494)

(12,642)

(11,744)

(7,231)

(152,313)

(4,716)

(898)

(4,513)

(56,820)

(17,358)

(12,642)

(11,744)

(209,133)

14,139

12,823

15,390

170,349

1,217

1,316

(2,567)

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year
Minority interests:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year
Total net assets

14,663

15,356

14,139

12,823

185,012

¥290,311

¥282,602

¥263,588

$3,497,723

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(Note 2)

Millions of yen

2011

Cash ﬂows from operating activities (Note 20):
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of (negative) goodwill
Deferred income taxes
Net loss on retirement and sale of property, plant and equipment
Minority interests in income
Net gain on sale of investments in securities
Equity in earnings (losses) of afﬁliated companies
Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets (Note 20)
Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable other
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable other
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on disaster
Increase (decrease) in retirement and severance beneﬁts
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash ﬂows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investment in securities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of subsidiaries’ and afﬁliated companies’ stock and
investments in securities
Purchases of investments in subsidiaries resulting in change
in scope of consolidation
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries’ and afﬁliated companies’ stock and
investments in securities
Purchases of trust beneﬁciary right
Proceeds from redemption of trust beneﬁciary right
Payments of loans receivable
Collection of loans receivable
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Redemption of bonds payable
Dividends paid to stockholders
Dividends paid to minority stockholders of consolidated subsidiaries
Other
Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents resulting from change in
ﬁscal year-end of consolidated subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Notes 1(c) and 20)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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¥ 18,943

2010

¥ 23,509

2009

2011

¥ 2,740

$ 228,229

28,985
(329)
575
799
2,088
(204)
(1,396)
6,555
(4,912)
(1,951)
(1,752)
1,320
(1,420)
(4,709)
(290)
2,461
492
(1,240)
44,015

31,666
(705)
(1,424)
1,174
1,464
(363)
(1,091)
—
(28,365)
(2,223)
(686)
17,919
1,248
9,012
(2,048)
—
607
6,803
56,497

34,560
(513)
1,272
1,038
824
(17)
1,107
3,138
47,444
7,794
1,658
(33,215)
(3,480)
(8,561)
(101)
—
529
(727)
55,490

349,217
(3,964)
6,928
9,626
25,157
(2,458)
(16,819)
78,976
(59,181)
(23,506)
(21,108)
15,903
(17,108)
(56,735)
(3,494)
29,651
5,928
(14,940)
530,302

(3,499)
(27,511)
479

—
(20,894)
681

—
(36,272)
1,777

(42,157)
(331,458)
5,771

(3,152)

(1,558)

(2,841)

(37,976)

(1,596)

—

—

(19,229)

281
(5,770)
6,769
(2,166)
135
282
(35,748)

654
(1,999)
1,000
(152)
1,977
288
(20,003)

339
—
—
(2,829)
108
(1,903)
(41,621)

3,386
(69,518)
81,554
(26,096)
1,627
3,397
(430,699)

(2,323)
3,226
(54)
—
(7,289)
(287)
(96)
(6,823)
(2,386)
(942)
97,603

(1,336)
480
(54)
(5,000)
(6,248)
(234)
(230)
(12,622)
(233)
23,639
73,964

(1,898)
235
(249)
(4,000)
(7,067)
(258)
(541)
(13,778)
(2,211)
(2,120)
76,084

(27,988)
38,867
(651)
—
(87,819)
(3,458)
(1,156)
(82,205)
(28,747)
(11,349)
1,175,940

114
¥ 96,775

—
¥ 97,603

—
¥ 73,964

1,373
$1,165,964

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

• Securities classified as neither trading securities nor held-to-maturity

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Chemical

securities are classified as other securities. Unrealized holding gains

Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and consolidated subsidiaries are prepared on

and losses of other securities with fair values are reported as a net

the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are

amount in a separate component of net assets until realized. Other

different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure require-

securities without fair values are carried at cost.

ments of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled
from the consolidated financial statements (the “MOF” report) prepared

In computing realized gain or loss, cost of other securities is principally determined by the moving-average method.

by the Company as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Law of Japan.

(f) Inventories

In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consol-

Inventories are mainly stated at cost determined by the moving-average

idated financial statements, including the notes to the consolidated

method. When their costs exceed the net realized value, inventories are

financial statements, include certain reclassifications and additional

written down to the net realized value.

information which is not required under accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment (Except for lease assets)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over

(b) Principles of Consolidation

the estimated useful lives of the respective assets by the declining-

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the

balance method, except for certain buildings of the Company and

Company and those of its effectively controlled subsidiaries, whether

domestic consolidated subsidiaries, placed in service after April 1, 1998,

directly or indirectly controlled. All significant intercompany accounts

which are depreciated by the straight-line method.

and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Most of the investments in affiliated companies are stated at their

Effective the year ended March 31, 2009, following the amendment
to the Corporation Tax Law, the Company and its domestic consolidated

underlying equity value, and the appropriate portion of the earnings of

subsidiaries reviewed the useful lives of machinery and changed them to

such companies is included in consolidated net income. The invest-

reflect the shortening of product-life cycles.

ments in affiliated companies which do not materially affect earnings and
equity are stated at cost.

Due to this change, income before income taxes and minority interests decreased for the year ended March 31, 2009 by ¥1,669 million.

Goodwill, based on the fair value, acquired by the Company is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful period by

(h) Intangible Assets (Except for lease assets)

each individual investment in subsidiaries, not exceeding twenty years

Intangible assets are amortized mainly on a straight-line basis. Cost

or, if the amount is not material, charged immediately to earnings.

incurred for computer software for internal use is capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the

(i) Leases

Company and its consolidated companies consider all highly liquid invest-

Lease assets are depreciated over the lease term by the straight-line

ments with insignificant risk of change in value, which have maturities of

method with no residual value. Finance leases that commenced on or

generally three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

before March 31, 2008, except those where the title of the underlying
property is legally transferred from the lessor to the lessee at the end of

(d) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

the lease term, are mainly accounted for as operating leases.

General provision for doubtful receivables is provided by applying a

Previously, finance leases without transfer of legal title were mainly

certain reserve percentage of the receivables based on experience from

accounted for as operating leases. However, from the year ended March

past transactions. When considered necessary, specific reserves are

31, 2009, the Company adopted “Accounting Standard for Lease Trans-

made based on the assessment of individual receivables.

actions” (Accounting Standard No.13, Accounting Standards Board of
Japan, June 17, 1993; revised on March 30, 2007) and “Guidance on

(e) Investments in Securities

Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions” (Guidance No.16,

Securities are to be classified into one of the following three categories

Accounting Standards Board of Japan, January 18, 1994: revised on

and accounted for as follows:

March 30, 2007), and as a result, finance leases without transfer of legal

• Securities that the Company held with the objective of generating

title are accounted for similar to the accounting for ordinary sales trans-

profits on short-term differences in price are classified as trading

action for assets. The adoption of this standard did not have a material

securities and measured at fair value, with unrealized holding gains

impact on consolidated financial statements.

and losses included in earnings.
• Securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and measured
at amortized cost.
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(j) Impairment of Fixed Assets

The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

translated into the reporting currency of yen as follows: all assets and

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recover-

liabilities are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance

able. When amounts of undiscounted future cash flows of fixed assets

sheet date; stockholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical

are less than the carrying amounts, the fixed assets are determined to be

rates; income and expenses are translated at an average of the exchange

impaired. Then, an amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the

rates in effect during the year; and a comprehensive adjustment resulting

recoverable amount is recognized as an impairment loss in earnings. The

from the translation of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity is

recoverable amount of fixed assets is the greater of the net selling price

included in minority interests and foreign currency translation adjust-

or the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from

ments as a separate component of net assets.

the fixed assets. The Company and consolidated subsidiaries identify
groups of assets by their business location and business division as the

(o) Appropriation of Retained Earnings

smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are

Under the Japanese Corporate Law (JCL) and the Company’s Articles of

largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of

Incorporation, the Company is able to appropriate retained earnings by

assets.

resolution of the Board of Directors, provided that certain criteria are met.

(k) Provision for loss on disaster

(p) Income Taxes

Provision for loss on disaster is provided for the estimated cost of restora-

Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability

tion, removal and other of the assets damaged by the Great East Japan

method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the

Earthquake.

expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between

(l) Retirement and Severance Benefits

and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities
Allowance for retirement and severance benefits for employees is

measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable

provided based on the estimated retirement benefit obligation and fair

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected

value of the pension assets.

to be recovered or settled.

Prior service benefits and costs are recognized as income or expense
on a straight-line basis over certain years, principally over 10 years, not

(q) Treasury Stock

exceeding the expected average remaining service periods of the

Treasury stock is recorded at cost as a deduction of stockholders’ equity.

employees active at the date of the amendment. Actuarial gains and

When the treasury stock is reissued as common stock, the difference

losses are recognized as income or expense on a straight-line basis from

between the issuance price and the cost of the treasury stock is credited

the next year of incurrence over certain years, principally over 10 years,

or charged to capital surplus or retained earnings.

not exceeding the expected average remaining service periods of the
employees participating in the plans.

(r) Net Income per Share

From the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company adopted the

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing income available to

“Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits

common stockholders by the weighted average number of common

(Part 3)” (Accounting Standard No.19, Accounting Standards Board of

shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per share

Japan, July 31, 2008). The adoption of this accounting standard had a

reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other

negligible effect on the retirement benefit obligations.

contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into
common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then

(m) Derivative Financial Instruments

shared in the earnings of the entity.

In principle, net assets or liabilities arising from derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gain or loss included in

(s) Reclassifications

earnings. Hedging transactions, that meet the criteria of hedge

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ consolidated

accounting as regulated in “Accounting Standard for Financial Instru-

financial statements in order to conform to the current year presentations.

ments,” are accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, which
requires the unrealized gain or loss to be deferred as net unrealized gains

(t) Changes in Accounting Standards

or losses on hedge transactions, component of net assets, until gain or

(1) Application of Accounting Standards for Asset Retirement Obligations

loss relating to the hedge object is recognized.

From the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company adopted the
“Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations” (Accounting

30

(n) Foreign Currency Translations

Standard No. 18, Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ), March

Foreign currency transactions are translated into yen on the basis of the

31, 2008) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Asset Retire-

exchange rates in effect at the transaction date. At year-end, monetary

ment Obligations” (Guidance No. 21, ASBJ, March 31, 2008). The

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into

adoption of these accounting standards has resulted in a decrease of

yen at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or

¥41 million ($494 thousand) in operating income, and a decrease of

losses resulting from the translation of foreign currencies, including gains

¥661 million ($7,964 thousand) in income before income taxes and

and losses on settlement, are credited or charged to earnings as incurred.

minority interests.

(2) Application of Accounting Standards for Equity Method of Accounting
for Investments

• “Partial amendments to Accounting Standard for Research and
Development Costs”

From the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company adopted the

(Accounting Standard No. 23, ASBJ, December 26, 2008)

“Accounting Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for Investments”

• “Revised Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures”

(Accounting Standard No. 16, Accounting Standards Board of Japan

(Accounting Standard No. 7, ASBJ, Revised on December 26, 2008)

(ASBJ), March 10, 2008) and the “Practical Solution on Unification of

• “Revised Accounting Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for

Accounting Policies Applied to Associates Accounted for Using the

Investments”

Equity Method” (PITF No. 24, ASBJ, March 10, 2008). The adoption of

(Accounting Standard No. 16, ASBJ, Revised on December 26, 2008)

these accounting standards had a negligible effect on the consolidated

• “Revised Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combina-

financial statements.
(3) Application of Accounting Standards for Business Combinations

tions and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures”
(Guidance No. 10, ASBJ, Revised on December 26, 2008)

From the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company adopted the
accounting standards below.

(u) Additional Information

• “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”

From the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company adopted the

(Accounting Standard No. 21, Accounting Standards Board of Japan

“Accounting Standard for Presentation of Comprehensive Income”

(ASBJ), December 26, 2008)

(Accounting Standard No. 25, Accounting Standards Board of Japan

• “Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements”

(ASBJ), June 30, 2010).

(Accounting Standard No. 22, ASBJ, December 26, 2008)

2. Basis of Financial Statement Translation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated into U.S.
dollars at the rate of ¥83=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2011. This translation
should not be construed as a representation that any amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Financial Instruments
In principle, funds are managed through short-term deposits and are

Short-term investments and investments in securities primarily consist

procured through debentures and bank loans. Additionally, derivative

of bonds and stock of the associates. In principle, only bonds that are

financial instruments are used in order to manage its exposure to fluctuate

highly safe are held, therefore, credit risk is minimal. Stock, on the other

in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices.

hand, is subject to risks related to the fluctuation of market value. In order

Trade notes and accounts receivables is subject to the credit risk of

to manage these risks, the Company and its subsidiaries periodically

customers. In order to minimize this risk, the Company and its subsid-

reconfirm the market value of the stocks held and the financial condition

iaries periodically monitor the financial condition of customers in accor-

of associates, and revaluate the holding of such stock while also taking

dance with the credit management standards and claims management

into consideration the relationships with these associates.

standards. The Company and its subsidiaries also work to fully grasp the

The following table provides the carrying amount, the fair value and

financial condition of customers and manage the settlement terms and

the difference between these two items of major financial instruments as

balances of each customer.

of March 31, 2011 and 2010:
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Carrying amount

Fair value

Millions of yen
Difference
Carrying amount

Fair value

2011

Assets:
Cash and deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a)
Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b)
Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Other securities
Liabilities:
Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c)
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Debentures
Long-term loans payable
Derivative ﬁnancial instrument transactions (Note d):
For which hedge accounting is not applied
For which hedge accounting is applied

¥ 39,984
56,911
106,939
(2,336)
104,603

¥ 39,984 ¥
56,911

102
13,798
¥215,398

Difference

2010

¥ 33,434
64,169

¥ —
—

(33)

¥ 33,434
64,169
105,059
(4,712)
100,347

100,348

1

98
13,798
¥215,361 ¥

(4)
—
(37)

—
9,924
¥207,874

—
9,924
¥207,875

—
—
¥ 1

¥ 52,741
12,895

¥ 52,741 ¥
12,895

—
—

¥ 54,586
11,763

¥ 54,586
11,763

¥ (0)
—

10,000
4,031
¥ 79,667

10,470
4,064
¥ 80,170 ¥

470
33
503

10,000
2,492
¥ 78,841

10,505
2,530
¥ 79,384

505
38
¥543

¥

¥

¥

¥

¥ —
—
¥ —

¥

(66)
(68)
(134)

Carrying amount

—
—

104,570

(66) ¥
(68)
(134) ¥

¥

—
—
—

¥

(299)
(28)
(327)

¥

(299)
(28)
(327)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Fair value
Difference

2011

Assets:
Cash and deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a)
Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b)
Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Other securities
Liabilities:
Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c)
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Debentures
Long-term loans payable
Derivative ﬁnancial instrument transactions (Note d):
For which hedge accounting is not applied
For which hedge accounting is applied

$ 481,735
685,675
1,288,422
(28,145)
1,260,277

$ 481,735
685,675

1,259,879

(398)

1,229
166,241
$2,595,157

1,181
166,241
$2,594,711

(48)
—
446

$ 635,434
155,361

$ 635,434
155,361

$

120,482
48,566
$ 959,843

126,145
48,964
$ 965,904

5,663
398
$ 6,061

$

$

$
Note: a.

(795)
(819)
(1,614)

$

$

$

(795) $
(819)
(1,614) $

—
—

—
—

—
—
—

The hedged foreign currency receivables that recorded using the Japanese yen amount of the contracted forward rate as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are included in the fair value
¥666 million ($8,024 thousand) and ¥1,363 million, respectively.
Note: b. Excludes general provision for doubtful receivables and specific reserves for individual receivables associated with trade notes and accounts receivables.
Note: c. The hedged foreign currency payables that recorded using the Japanese yen amount of the contracted forward rate as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are included in the fair value ¥57
million ($687 thousand) and ¥136 million, respectively.
Note: d. These represent net assets or liabilities arising from derivative transactions. The figures in parentheses indicate net liabilities.
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The method of calculating the fair value of financial instruments is as

Debentures

follows:

The fair value of debentures issued by the Company is the value provided

Cash and deposits, deposits to related companies

by the counterparty financial institution.

As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used.

Long-term loans payable
Loans with floating interest rates reflect market interest rates over the

Trade notes and accounts receivables

short term, and the Company’s credit standing has not changed signifi-

The fair value of items settled in the short term approximates the book

cantly after the loan was made. The fair value approximates the book

value, therefore, the book value is used. The fair value of installment

value, therefore, the book value is used. The fair value of fixed-rate loans

receivables is determined by discounting the amount of receivables by a

is determined by discounting the total amount of principal and interest by

rate that reflects the credit risk.

the assumed rate on new borrowings of the same type.

Short-term investments and investments in securities

Derivative financial instrument transactions

The fair value of equity securities is the quoted market prices on the

The fair value of derivative financial instrument transactions is the value

stock exchange. The fair value of bonds is the value provided by the

provided by the counterparty financial institution.

counterparty financial institution.
Trade notes and accounts payables, short-term debt
As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used.
The previous table does not include non-marketable securities because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult in estimating
fair value. The carrying amount of non-marketable securities at March 31, 2011 and 2010 totaled ¥3,522 million ($42,434 thousand) and ¥3,473
million, respectively.
Redemption schedules of receivables and securities with a maturity date are as follows:
Millions of yen
After one
year through
ﬁve years

Within
one year

After
ﬁve years

After one
year through
ﬁve years

Within
one year

2011

Deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables
Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Debentures:
Other securities
Debt securities:

¥ 39,953
56,911
104,407

¥ —
—
196

—
5,700
¥206,971

After
ﬁve years

2010

¥

—
—
—

¥ 33,373
64,169
100,348

¥—
—
—

¥

—
—
—

100

—

—

—

—

700
¥996

1,000
¥1,000

1,700
¥199,590

—
¥—

1,000
¥1,000

Thousands of U.S. dollars
After one
year through
Afterr
ﬁve years
ﬁve years

Within
one year

2011

Deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables
Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Debentures:
Other securities
Debt securities:

$ 481,361
685,675
1,257,916

$

—
—
2,361

$

—
—
—

—

1,205

—

68,675
$2,493,627

8,434
$12,000

12,048
$12,048
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4. Short-term Investments and Investments in Securities
Held-to-maturity securities

Carrying
amount

Estimated
fair value

Millions of yen
Unrealized gains
Carrying
(losses)
amount

2011

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds

Estimated
fair value

Unrealized gains
(losses)

2010

¥ —
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

—
102
—
102
¥102

—
98
—
98
¥98

—
(4)
—
(4)
¥(4)

—
—
—
—
¥—

—
—
—
—
¥—

—
—
—
—
¥—

Carrying
amount

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Estimated
Unrealized gains
fair value
(losses)

2011

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds

$

—
—
—
—

—
1,229
—
1,229
$1,229

$

—
—
—
—

—
1,181
—
1,181
$1,181

$ —
—
—
—
—
(48)
—
(48)
$(48)

Other securities

Carrying
amount

Acquisition
cost

Millions of yen
Unrealized gains
Carrying
(losses)
amount

2011

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities
Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities

2010

¥ 2,990
—
—
2,990

¥3,122
—
—
3,122

¥6,940
—
—
6,940

¥3,171
—
—
3,171

¥3,769
—
—
3,769

198
7,281
207
7,686
¥13,798

231
7,400
207
7,838
¥10,828

(33)
(119)
—
(152)
¥2,970

90
2,635
259
2,984
¥9,924

134
2,700
259
3,093
¥6,264

(44)
(65)
—
(109)
¥3,660

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Acquisition
Unrealized gains
cost
(losses)

2011

Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities
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Unrealized gains
(losses)

¥ 6,112
—
—
6,112

Carrying
amount

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities

Acquisition
cost

$ 73,639 $ 36,024
—
—
—
—
73,639
36,024

$37,615
—
—
37,615

2,385
2,783
87,723
89,157
2,494
2,494
92,602
94,434
$166,241 $130,458

(398)
(1,434)
—
(1,832)
$35,783

5. Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Finished and semi-ﬁnished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

2010

¥16,782
9,651
12,150
¥38,583

¥16,504
9,306
10,727
¥36,537

2011

$202,193
116,277
146,385
$464,855

6. Income Taxes
The income tax expenses (benefits) reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 consist of
the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense (beneﬁt)

¥13,411
575
¥13,986

2010

2009

¥12,957
(1,424)
¥11,533

¥7,955
1,272
¥9,227

2011

$161,578
6,928
$168,506

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income.
The aggregated statutory tax rate for domestic companies was approximately 40.4% for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.
Reconciliations between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes and minority interests
are as follows:
2011

Statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Equity in earnings (losses) of afﬁliated companies
Amortization of negative goodwill
Change in valuation allowance
Tax credit for R&D expenses
Other
Effective income tax rate

2010

40.4%
1.3
(1.6)
(0.7)
8.8
(5.5)
(2.8)
39.9%

40.4%
1.1
(1.2)
(0.9)
0.5
(6.4)
(1.9)
31.6%

2009

40.4%
4.9
3.5
(2.0)
37.2
(6.6)
(5.3)
72.1%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2011 and 2010
are presented below:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Total gross deferred tax assets:
Retirement and severance beneﬁts
Accrued bonus
Accrued business tax
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Other
Valuation allowance
Total gross deferred tax liabilities:
Tax purpose reserves regulated by Japanese Tax Law
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Prepaid pension beneﬁt cost
Other
Net deferred tax assets

2010

2011

¥ 8,762
3,855
669
1,082
17,991
32,359
(12,082)
20,277

¥ 8,549
3,784
923
1,969
14,433
29,658
(9,016)
20,642

$ 105,566
46,446
8,060
13,036
216,759
389,867
(145,566)
244,301

(37)
(1,142)
(1,372)
(806)
(3,357)
¥16,920

(41)
(1,442)
(1,412)
(364)
(3,259)
¥17,383

(446)
(13,759)
(16,530)
(9,711)
(40,446)
$ 203,855

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following captions:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Other current assets
Other assets
Other liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

¥ 8,904
8,126
(110)
¥16,920

2010

¥10,040
7,494
(151)
¥17,383

2011

$107,277
97,903
(1,325)
$203,855
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, at cost as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Land
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Lease assets
Construction in progress

2010

¥ 18,173
126,942
375,613
148
4,191
¥525,067

¥ 19,220
127,089
379,229
189
4,584
¥530,311

2011

$ 218,952
1,529,422
4,525,458
1,783
50,494
$6,326,109

8. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Unsecured debentures:
8th series, due 2016, interest 2.17%
Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies:
Secured by mortgages on property, plant and
equipment, maturing 2013, interest 1.89%
Unsecured, maturing 2012–2017, interest 0.59–4.86%

2010

2011

¥10,000

¥10,000

$120,482

500
3,531
¥14,031

500
1,992
¥12,492

6,024
42,542
$169,048

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2012 are as follows:
Years ending March 31,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

¥

554
1,964
320
1,123
10,046
24
¥14,031

$

6,675
23,663
3,855
13,530
121,036
289
$169,048

The assets pledged as collateral for long-term debt at March 31, 2011 are as follows:
Millions of yen

Land
Buildings
Machinery
Other

¥ 343
1,403
4,302
578
¥6,626

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

$ 4,132
16,904
51,831
6,964
$79,831

As is customary in Japan, both short-term and long-term bank loans

Generally, certain secured and unsecured loan agreements provide,

are made under general agreements which provide that security and

among other things, that the lenders or trustees shall have the right to

guarantees for present and future indebtedness will be given upon

have any distribution of earnings, including the payment of dividends and

request of the bank, and that the bank shall have the right, as the obliga-

the issuance of additional capital stock, submitted to them for prior

tions become due or in the event of default, to offset cash deposits

approval and also grant them the right to request additional security or

against such obligations due the bank.

mortgages on property, plant and equipment.

9. Liability for Retirement and Severance Beneﬁts
Defined Benefit Plans

on the current rate of pay and the length of service upon retirement or

The Company and its subsidiaries have a number of contributory and

termination of employment for reasons other than dismissal for cause.

non-contributory pension plans to provide retirement and severance

The liability under these plans is partially funded by contributions to

benefits to substantially all the employees.

pension fund trusts.

Principal pension plans are unfunded defined benefit pension plans.
Under the plans, employees are entitled to lump-sum payments based
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Funded status of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans as of March
31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Projected beneﬁt obligations
Plan assets at fair value
Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service beneﬁt
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Prepaid pension beneﬁt cost (other assets)
Retirement and severance beneﬁts

2010

2011

¥(87,857)
68,105
(19,752)
7,811
(686)
¥(12,627)

¥(89,989)
68,951
(21,038)
9,829
(808)
¥(12,017)

$(1,058,518)
820,542
(237,976)
94,108
(8,265)
$ (152,133)

¥ 3,417
(16,044)
¥(12,627)

¥ 3,535
(15,552)
¥(12,017)

$

41,168
(193,301)
$ (152,133)

Net periodic benefit costs for the funded benefit pension plans and the unfunded lump-sum payment plans for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 consisted of the following components:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Service cost, net of employees’ contributions
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss
Amortization of unrecognized prior service beneﬁt and cost
Net periodic beneﬁt cost

2010

¥ 2,796
2,239
(1,302)
2,329
(264)
¥ 5,798

2009

¥ 2,897
2,351
(1,163)
3,416
94
¥ 7,595

¥ 2,942
2,350
(1,230)
1,837
(164)
¥ 5,735

2011

$ 33,687
26,976
(15,687)
28,060
(3,181)
$ 69,855

Note: Besides retirement and severance benefits under the defined benefit pension plans above, premium retirement benefits of ¥371 million ($4,470 thousand), ¥181 million and ¥238 million
were charged to earnings during the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Actuarial assumptions used in the accounting for the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans are principally as follows:
2011

Discount rate
Expected return rate on plan assets

1.5~2.8%
2.0%

2010

1.4~2.7%
2.0%

Defined Contribution Plans
The amount of cost recognized for the Company’s and those subsidiaries’ contribution to the plans for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 was
¥895 million ($10,783 thousand) and ¥957 million, respectively.

10. Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company has recorded asset retirement obligations pertaining to the legal obligation to eliminate asbestos and other harmful substances present in
property, plant and equipment upon their retirement and to the obligation to return offices and other leased facilities to their original condition (restitution
obligations) as stated in their lease contracts.
Methods of calculating the amounts for asset retirement obligations in the year ended March 31, 2011, are as follows:
Estimated period of use

Discount rate

2011

Obligations to eliminate asbestos, etc.
Restitution obligations

5–35 years
8–60 years

1.4–2.3%
1.0–2.4%

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Changes in applicable asset retirement obligations in the year ended March 31, 2011, are as follows:
2011

Balance at beginning of year
Increase due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Adjustment due to passage of time
Decrease due to fulﬁllment of obligations
Balance at end of year

¥855
80
14
(11)
¥938

$10,301
964
169
(133)
$11,301

11. Common Stock
Issued shares, changes in shares and the amount of common stock for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

Issued shares

Balances as of March 31, 2008
Issued upon exercise of stock options
Issued upon exchange of shares
Balances as of March 31, 2009
Balances as of March 31, 2010
Balances as of March 31, 2011

207,452,608
14,900
897,405
208,364,913
208,364,913
208,364,913

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Amount

Amount

¥15,443
11
—
15,454
15,454
¥15,454

$186,193
$186,193
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12. Stock-based Compensation
As of March 31, 2011, the Company has no stock option plan.
A summary of activities of the Company’s stock option plans for the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

Stock options
(shares)

Weightedaverage
exercise price
(Yen)

Stock options
(shares)

2011

Outstanding at beginning of year
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding at end of year

44,000
—
—
(44,000)
—

Weighted-average information:
Remaining contractual life
Options exercisable at end of year

Weightedaverage
exercise price
(Yen)

2010

¥2,123
—
—
2,123
¥
—

88,000
—
(9,000)
(35,000)
44,000

—
—

Weightedaverage
exercise price
(Yen)

Stock options
(shares)

Weightedaverage
exercise price
(U.S. dollars)

2009

¥2,028
—
2,123
1,883
¥2,123

0.3 years
44,000 shares

170,100
(14,900)
(66,200)
(1,000)
88,000

¥1,951
1,529
1,952
1,503
¥2,028

2011

$25.58
—
—
25.58
$
—

0.9 years
88,000 shares

13. Net Assets and Cash Dividends
The Company’s common stock has no par value in accordance with the

retained earnings, including legal reserves, can generally be transferred to

Japanese Corporate Law (JCL). Under JCL, at least 50% of the amount

each other upon resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

actually paid in or provided in consideration for newly issued stocks is

Cash dividends during the years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and

designated as stated common stock and proceeds in excess of the amount

2009 in the consolidated statements of changes in net assets, represent

designated as stated common stock are recorded as capital surplus.

dividends resolved during those years. The consolidated financial state-

The JCL requires an amount equal to at least 10% of distributions of

ments do not include any provision for the dividends of ¥18 ($0.22) per

retained earnings to be appropriated as legal reserve, which are included

share totaling ¥3,749 million ($45,169 thousand), which were subse-

in capital surplus and retained earnings, until legal reserve equals 25% of

quently resolved by the Board of Directors in respect of the year ended

stated common stock. In addition, common stock, capital surplus and

March 31, 2011.

14. Treasury Stock
The Japanese Corporate Law (JCL) allows a company to acquire treasury

shares) as shares below a minimum trading lot cannot be publicly traded

stocks upon shareholders’ approval to the extent that sufficient distribut-

and do not carry a voting right. The JCL also states for that a shareholder

able funds are available. If the Board of Directors’ authority is stated in

holding shares less than a minimum trading lot is entitled to request the

the Articles of Incorporation, a company is allowed to purchase treasury

company to sell its treasury stock, if any, to the shareholder up to a

stock not upon shareholders’ approval but Board of Director’s approval.

minimum trading lot, provided that sale of treasury stock is allowed

In this connection, purchase of treasury stock is allowed under the

under the Articles of Incorporation. In this connection, sale of treasury

Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

stock is allowed under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

Pursuant to the provisions of the JCL, shareholders may request the
Company to acquire their shares below a minimum trading lot (100

The changes in treasury stock for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows:

Shares

Balances as of March 31, 2008
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Balances as of March 31, 2009
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Balances as of March 31, 2010
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Balances as of March 31, 2011
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64,765
12,210
(1,994)
74,981
35,116
(336)
109,761
4,331
(410)
113,682

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Amount

Amount

¥121
21
(4)
138
44
(1)
181
8
(1)
¥188

$2,181
96
(12)
$2,265

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent liabilities for guarantees given in respect of bank loans of

accounts receivable and to transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in

employees amounted to ¥159 million ($1,916 thousand) and ¥173

the settlement of accounts payable. The Company and its subsidiaries

million at March 31, 2011 and 2010.

are contingently liable for trade notes endorsed, which amounted to

It is common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary course
of business, to receive promissory notes in the settlement of trade

¥723 million ($8,711 thousand) and ¥1,087 million at March 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

16. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses included in general and administrative expenses and gross production cost for the years ended March 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 amounted to ¥26,382 million ($317,855 thousand), ¥25,402 million and ¥27,617 million, respectively.

17. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company and certain foreign consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

Hitachi-shi, Ibaraki Prefecture and other

Idle

Land

Singapore and other

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

Idle assets for which value declined due to lower land prices and other

The Company and its subsidiaries determine recoverable amount by

factors were devalued from the carrying amount to the recoverable amount

measuring net selling price or value in use. Net selling price for the

by ¥200 million ($2,410 thousand), which was recorded as impairment

measurement of recoverable amount is based on the appraisal. Value in

losses on fixed assets. Production facilities and other assets for which

use for the measurement of recoverable amount is based on the present

value declined due to decreased profitability were devalued from the

value of the future cash flow with the discount rate of 12.54%.

carrying amount to the recoverable amount by ¥1,640 million ($19,759
thousand), which was recorded as impairment losses on fixed assets.

For the year ended March 31, 2009, a certain domestic consolidated subsidiary recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

Mouka-shi, Tochigi Prefecture

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

Miharu-machi, Fukushima Prefecture

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

Production facilities and other assets for which value declined were

for the measurement of recoverable amount is based on the assessed

devalued from the carrying amount to the recoverable amount by ¥3,138

value of fixed assets tax. Value in use for the measurement of recoverable

million, which was recorded as impairment losses on fixed assets.

amount is based on the present value of the future cash flow with the

The domestic consolidated subsidiary determines recoverable

discount rate of 3.5%.

amount by measuring net selling price or value in use. Net selling price

18. Loss on Disaster
Loss on disaster due to the Great East Japan Earthquake occurred on March 11, 2011 is as follows:
Millions of yen

2011

Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets
Loss on retirement of ﬁxed assets
Loss on valuation and retirement of inventories
Fixed cost on mothballing period
Estimated amount of earthquake insurance reimbursement
Cost of restoration, removal and other (including provision for loss on disaster)

¥ 4,715
63
1,825
1,844
(1,007)
2,834
¥10,274

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2010

$ 56,807
759
21,988
22,217
(12,133)
34,145
$123,783

For the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets
because these assets are located in the mandatory evacuation zone and cannot be operated in the meantime due to the accident of the Fukushima No.1
nuclear power plant as follows:
Location

Use

Namie-cho, Fukushima Prefecture

Production facilities and other

Type

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other
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19. Per Share Information
The reconciliation of the number of shares and the amounts used in the basic and diluted net income per share computations is as follows:
Thousands of shares

2011

Weighted average number of shares on which basic net income per share is calculated
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock option, issued under the former Japanese Corporate Law
Number of shares on which diluted net income per share is calculated

2010

2009

208,253

208,260

208,291

—
208,253

—
208,260

2
208,293
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2010

2009

Net income
Net income not applicable to common stockholders
Net income on which basic net income per share is calculated
Effect of dilutive securities

¥18,943
—
18,943
—

2011

¥23,509
—
23,509
—

¥2,740
—
2,740
—

$228,229
—
228,229
—

Net income on which diluted net income per share is calculated

¥18,943

¥23,509

¥2,740

$228,229

Yen

2011

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted

¥90.96
—

2011

U.S. dollars

2010

2009

¥112.88
—

¥13.15
13.15

2011

$1.10
—

Net assets per share as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
Yen

2011

Basic

¥1,320.30

U.S. dollars

2010

2011

¥1,289.11

$15.91

20. Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes is as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes

¥

2010

590
18,236

¥ 647
5,174

2009

¥ 1,041
19,897

2011

$

7,108
219,711

For the year ended March 31, 2011, impairment losses on fixed assets of ¥6,555 million includes impairment losses on fixed assets of ¥4,715 million
in the loss on disaster.
The components of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Cash and deposits
Time deposits with over three months maturity
Deposits to related companies
Cash and cash equivalents
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¥39,984
(120)
56,911
¥96,775

2010

¥33,434
—
64,169
¥97,603

2009

¥30,115
—
43,849
¥73,964

2011

$ 481,735
(1,446)
685,675
$1,165,964

21. Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company and certain subsidiaries operate globally and are exposed

The Company and its subsidiaries have no derivative financial instru-

to market risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange

ments for trading purposes. In addition, the Company and its subsid-

rates, interest rates and commodity prices. In order to manage those

iaries are exposed to potential credit-related losses in the event of

risks, the Company and certain subsidiaries enter into various contracts

non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments and deriva-

on derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange

tive financial instruments, but it is not expected that any counterparties

contracts, currency option contracts, currency swap contracts, interest

will fail to meet their obligations, because most of the counterparties are

rate option contracts, interest rate swap contracts and commodity swap

authentic financial institutions.

contracts. Forward exchange contracts are utilized to manage risks

The Company and its subsidiaries have also developed hedging

arising from foreign currency receivables from export of finished goods;

policies to control various aspects of derivative financial transactions

foreign currency payables from the import of raw materials; and

including authorization levels and transaction volumes. Based on these

forecasted foreign currency sales and purchase transactions. Currency

policies, the Company and its subsidiaries hedge, within certain scopes,

option contracts, interest rate option contracts and interest rate swap

risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest

contracts are utilized to manage foreign currency risk and interest rate

rates and commodity prices. The Company and its subsidiaries review

risk for debts. Commodity swap contracts are utilized to manage the

periodically the effectiveness of all the hedge policies to take account of

commodity price fluctuation risk on purchased raw material (lead).

the cumulative cash flows and any changes in the market.

The estimated fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Millions of yen
Unrealized
Notional
gains (losses)
amounts

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Currency swap contracts:
To buy foreign currencies

Estimated
fair values

Unrealized
gains (losses)

2010

¥ 2,064
1,815

¥(19)
24

10,882
946

(89)
10

(89)
10

11,922
1,482

(313)
24

(313)
24

697
¥16,404

7
¥(67)

7
¥(63)

—
¥14,334

—
¥(294)

—
¥(294)

Notional
amounts

¥ 8
1

¥

562
368

¥

(9)
4

¥

(1)
(4)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Estimated
Unrealized
fair values
gains (losses)

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Currency swap contracts:
To buy foreign currencies

$ 24,868 $ (229)
21,867
289

131,108
11,398

$

96
12

(1,072)
121

(1,072)
121

8,398
84
$197,639 $ (807)

84
$ (759)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Millions of yen
Unrealized
Notional
gains (losses)
amounts

2011

Interest rate option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

¥400
¥400

Notional
amounts

¥(3)
¥(3)

Estimated
fair values

Unrealized
gains (losses)

2010

¥(3)
¥(3)

¥400
¥400

¥(5)
¥(5)

¥(5)
¥(5)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Estimated
Unrealized
fair values
gains (losses)

2011

Interest rate option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$4,819
$4,819

$(36)
$(36)

$(36)
$(36)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
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The estimated fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
Millions of yen
Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Notional
amounts

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

Estimated
fair values

2010

¥ 332
166

¥(12)
6

¥

—
—

3,505
¥4,003

(65)
¥(71)

3,138
¥3,138

¥ —
—

(56)
¥(56)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional
Estimated
amounts
fair values

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies
Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$ 4,000
2,000

$(144)
72

42,229
$48,229

(783)
$(855)

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
Millions of yen
Notional
amounts

Estimated
fair values

Notional
amounts

2011

Commodity swap contracts:
Variable receipt and ﬁxed payment

¥—
¥—

Estimated
fair values

2010

¥—
¥—

¥1,464
¥1,464

¥28
¥28

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional
Estimated
amounts
fair values

2011

Commodity swap contracts:
Variable receipt and ﬁxed payment

$—
$—

$—
$—

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

22. Leases
Lessee
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements as of March 31, 2011 are ¥228 million ($2,747 thousand) due
within one year and ¥641 million ($7,723 thousand) due after one year.
Finance leases (without transfer of legal title) that commenced on or before March 31, 2008 are mainly accounted for as operating leases. For the
years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, lease payments of ¥107 million ($1,289 thousand), ¥214 million and ¥292 million, respectively, under
such finance leases were included in earnings. On a pro forma basis, leased property, lease obligation and the related expenses, with assumed capitalization of such finance leases are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Leased property:
Equipment and other, at cost
Less accumulated depreciation (Note a)
Net equipment and other
Depreciation expense (Note a)
Lease obligation:
Within one year
After one year
Total
Interest expense (Note b)

2010

2009

¥ 169
(143)
¥ 26
¥ 81

¥ 566
(459)
¥ 107
¥ 166

¥ 861
(587)
¥ 274
¥ 237

$ 2,036
(1,723)
$ 313
$ 976

¥ 20
7
¥ 27
¥
1

¥ 83
27
¥ 110
¥ 3

¥ 168
110
¥ 278
¥ 5

$

Note: a. Leased property is depreciated over the lease term by the straight-line method with no residual value.
Note: b. Excess of total lease payments over the assumed acquisition costs is regarded as assumed interest payable and is allocated to each period using the interest method.
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2011

$
$

241
84
325
12

23. Business Combinations
The Company previously held 49% of the stock of Thai Sintered Products

The difference between the carrying amount of the holdings in Thai

Co., Ltd. through Hitachi Powdered Metals (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., a

Sintered Products Co., Ltd. previously possessed by the Company before

subsidiary of wholly owned subsidiary Hitachi Powered Metals Co., Ltd.

the acquisition and its fair value on the day of the acquisition was

Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd. manufactures powder metal products for

recorded as gain on step acquisitions totaling ¥392 million ($4,723

use in motorcycles and automobiles, and sells these to the rapidly

thousand). Also the gain on step acquisitions and the difference between

expanding markets in Southeast Asia and India. Previously, the Company

the capital paid for the acquisition and the combined value of the assets

did not hold a majority share in Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd., and was

and liabilities acquired was recorded as goodwill, which will be amortized

therefore unable to exercise flexible management of that company’s

on a straight-line basis over a period of three years.

operations, with regard to capital investment and other concerns, due to
joint venture-related constraints. For this reason, the Company decided to

A breakdown of the cost of the acquisition and the goodwill acquired
is as follows:

acquire a 100% stake in Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd.’s business.
establish a new subsidiary in Thailand, Hitachi Powdered Metals

Fair value at the acquisition date
of the previously held stock of
Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd.:

¥ 834 million

$10,048 thousand

(Thailand) Co., Ltd. After this, all aspects of Thai Sintered Products Co.,

Cash paid for the acquisition:

¥1,699 million

$20,470 thousand

Ltd.’s business, including its assets and liabilities, were transferred to the

Total cost of the acquisition:

¥2,533 million

$30,518 thousand

In acquiring this stake, we first had Hitachi Powered Metals Co., Ltd.

newly established company. Thai Sintered Products Co., Ltd. was then
Goodwill:

dissolved and liquidated.

¥1,677 million $20,205 thousand

24. Related Party Transactions
Certain consolidated subsidiary has related party transactions with Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company. The related balances as of March 31, 2011 and 2010,
and the amount of these transactions for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2011

Balances with Hitachi, Ltd.:
Deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund
Transactions with Hitachi, Ltd.:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund

2010

2011

¥54,083

¥61,001

$651,602

¥ (6,918)

¥19,201

$ (83,349)

25. Segment Information
The Company’s reportable segment is the constituent units of our business, for which separate financial information is available, and whose operating results
are reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors of the Company to determine the allocation of management resources and assess their performance.
The Company is developing business activities based on the organizational structure that is categorized depending on the degree of product
processing, from materials through components to parts.
Based on the above, according to the degree of product processing, the Company determines two reportable segments, namely categorizing
materials as “Functional Materials Segment” and the components and parts as “Advanced Components and Systems Segment”, and the main products
of each reportable segment are provided on page 10 of this annual report.
Reportable segment information:
Millions of yen
Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2011

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales
Operating income
Assets
Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method afﬁliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill
Amortization of negative goodwill
Negative goodwill

¥251,984
8,590
260,574
¥ 31,075
¥261,844

¥245,468
440
245,908
¥ 12,387
¥171,951

¥497,452
9,030
506,482
¥ 43,462
¥433,795

¥

—
(9,030)
(9,030)
¥
9
¥(1,611)

¥497,452
—
497,452
¥ 43,471
¥432,184

¥ 14,702
4,340
14,159
1,215
—
—
—
—

¥ 14,283
1,204
17,953
5,340
316
1,629
645
—

¥ 28,985
5,544
32,112
6,555
316
1,629
645
—

¥

¥ 28,985
5,544
32,112
6,555
316
1,629
645
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
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Millions of yen
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2010

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales
Operating income
Assets
Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method afﬁliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill
Amortization of negative goodwill
Negative goodwill

¥240,704
3,581
244,285
¥ 32,183
¥254,526

¥214,583
487
215,070
¥ 6,236
¥173,110

¥455,287
4,068
459,355
¥ 38,419
¥427,636

¥

—
(4,068)
(4,068)
¥ (78)
¥(1,050)

¥455,287
—
455,287
¥ 38,341
¥426,586

¥ 16,264
4,302
9,520
—
—
—
—
—

¥ 15,402
2,415
11,464
—
132
266
837
645

¥ 31,666
6,717
20,984
—
132
266
837
645

¥

¥ 31,666
6,717
20,984
—
132
266
837
645

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2011

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales
Operating income
Assets
Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method afﬁliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on ﬁxed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill
Amortization of negative goodwill
Negative goodwill

$3,035,952
103,494
3,139,446
$ 374,398
$3,154,747

$2,957,446
5,301
2,962,747
$ 149,241
$2,071,699

$5,993,398 $
—
108,795 (108,795)
6,102,193 (108,795)
$ 523,639 $
108
$5,226,446 $ (19,410)

$5,993,398
—
5,993,398
$ 523,747
$5,207,036

$ 177,133
52,289
170,591
14,639
—
—
—
—

$ 172,084
14,506
216,301
64,337
3,807
19,627
7,771
—

$ 349,217 $
66,795
386,892
78,976
3,807
19,627
7,771
—

$ 349,217
66,795
386,892
78,976
3,807
19,627
7,771
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Geographic Information:
Japan

Asia

Millions of yen
Other areas

Total

2011

Net sales
Net property, plant and equipment

¥281,352
¥ 92,874

Japan

¥181,535
¥ 24,064

Asia

¥34,565
¥ 3,575

Millions of yen
Other areas

¥497,452
¥120,513

Total

2010

Net sales
Net property, plant and equipment

¥259,914
¥ 99,886

Japan

¥163,267
¥ 23,116

¥32,106
¥ 3,642

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Asia
Other areas

¥455,287
¥126,644

Total

2011

Net sales
Net property, plant and equipment

$3,389,783
$1,118,964

$2,187,169
$ 289,928

$416,446
$ 43,072

$5,993,398
$1,451,964

(Additional Information)
From the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company adopted the “Revised Accounting Standard for Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information” (Accounting Standard No.17, Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ), Revised on March 27, 2009) and the “Guidance on
the Accounting Standard for Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” (Guidance No.20, ASBJ, March 21, 2008).
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Major Subsidiaries and Affiliates
As of March 31, 2011

Japan

Asia & Oceania

MANUFACTURING

MANUFACTURING

Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.

Foshan J.B. Automotive Products Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and
plastic products

Manufacturing and marketing of photosensitive
dry ﬁlms for printed wiring boards and electrical
insulating varnishes

Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

Hitachi Storage Battery (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of batteries

Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of powder metal products

Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of printed wiring boards

Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding
compounds for semiconductors and photosensitive dry ﬁlms for printed wiring boards

Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

Manufacturing and marketing of photosensitive
dry ﬁlms for printed wiring boards and electrical
insulating varnishes

Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of plastic interior/exterior
automotive parts

Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of adhesives and
synthetic resin products

Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of carbon products

Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of food-wrapping ﬁlms

Hitachi Chemical Industrial Materials Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of road sign
materials and molded synthetic resin products

Hitachi Chemical Coated Sand Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of coated sands

Hitachi AIC Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of capacitors

Hitachi Chemical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring
boards

Hitachi Powdered Metals (Singapore) Pte. Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of powder
metal products

Hitachi Chemical (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation of anisotropic conductive ﬁlms
for displays, marketing of functional materials

Japan Brake (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

SALES AND SERVICE

Hitachi Chemical (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Marketing of advanced components and systems

Hitachi Chemical Co., (Taiwan) Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring
boards, slitting operation, and marketing of
photosensitive dry ﬁlms for printed wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical Co. (Hong Kong) Limited
Marketing of functional materials

Hitachi Chemical Asia-Paciﬁc Pte. Ltd.
Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products
(Thailand) Company Limited

Marketing of functional materials

Manufacturing and marketing of plastic interior/
exterior automotive parts

Hitachi Chemical International Co.,
(Taiwan) Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials

Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding
compounds and die bonding materials
for semiconductors

America & Europe

Hitachi Chemical (Yantai) Co., Ltd.

MANUFACTURING

Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive
dry ﬁlms for printed wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical Diagnostics, Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of diagnostic
reagents

INSTALLATION, TRADING, DESIGN, AND SERVICE

Bioclone Australia Pty Limited

Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of diagnostic
reagents

Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A. de C.V.

Hitachi Kasei Business Service Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials (Korea)
Co., Ltd.

Sintering Technologies, Inc.

Leasing of personal computers and other ofﬁce
equipment, outsourcing of patent application
related businesses

Slitting operation of photosensitive dry ﬁlms for
printed wiring boards, marketing of functional
materials

Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Battery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Outsourcing of distribution, testing, and other
business services

Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and
plastic products

Hitachi Battery Sales & Service Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Powdered Metals (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Marketing and service of batteries, electric
equipments, and golf carts

Manufacturing and marketing of powder
metal products

Marketing of functional materials, advanced
components and systems, and other products

Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

Manufacturing and marketing of powder
metal products

Tri-Continent Scientiﬁc, Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of OEM liquidhandling products and instrument components

RESEARCH

Hitachi Chemical Research Center, Inc.
R&D in biotechnology

PT Hitachi Powdered Metals Indonesia

SALES AND SERVICE

Manufacturing and marketing of powder
metal products

Hitachi Chemical Company America, Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials and
advanced components and systems

Hitachi Powdered Metals (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of powder
metal products
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Hitachi Chemical Europe GmbH
Marketing of functional materials

Investor Information
As of March 31, 2011

HITACHI CHEMICAL CO., LTD.
Head Ofﬁce

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Shinjuku-Mitsui Building, 1-1, Nishi-Shinjuku 2-chome,
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0449, Japan
Phone: 81-3-3346-3111
Fax: 81-3-3346-2977

Tokyo Securities Transfer Agent Co., Ltd.
Nihon Building, Fourth Floor, 6-2, Otemachi 2-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0004, Japan

Investor Relations Contact
Established

Number of Employees

CSR Management Sector, Corporate Communication Center,
Public and Investor Relations Group
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Shinjuku-Mitsui Building, 1-1, Nishi-Shinjuku 2-chome,
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0449, Japan
Phone: 81-3-5381-2370
Fax: 81-3-5381-3023

4,015 (Non-consolidated)
15,930 (Consolidated)

URL

October 10, 1962

Paid-in Capital
¥15,454 million

http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/

Common Stock
Authorized: 800,000,000 shares
Issued: 208,364,913 shares

Composition of Shareholders

Number of Shareholders

0.5%
Other domestic corporations

20,511

109,329,351 shares
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

7.4 %

Financial institutions

June

18.8 %

43,383,192 shares

Stock Exchange Listings

Foreign corporations

Tokyo, Osaka (Ticker Symbol Number: 4217)

52.5 %

39,214,081 shares
20.8 %

Individuals and others

Independent Auditor

15,373,838 shares

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC

Securities companies

950,769

shares

Note: Excludes treasury stock
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